
G. R. M0lll
Chartered Accountants

12, Lormanoroyon thopping Gnter,
lrt Floor, Poddor Rood, Molod (O,

Mumboi - :|OOO97.
Tel No. 9l-22-2a8a4274 - 28at93o4

Fox No. 9t-22-28a193o4.
Email I occountrQmodi(onsultoncy.com

E G0.

Independent Auditor's RePort
To the Members ofAjants Pharma (Mauriti s) Ltd (Consolidated)

Report oo thc Consolidated Finencisl Statem€nts

Th; accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD and AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS

fNigiNaflONal- lfD. are being audited under the local laws ofthe country by the statutory auditor

i..-ttr" p"rioa Ist Jan 2018 to 3lst December 2018. Financial Statements of AJANTA PHARMA

uai-,xfiius lfo. *nsolidated with Ajanta Pharma Mauritius lnternational Ltd for the period 1st April

2018 to 3lst March 2019. The holding company Ajanta Pharma Limited (lndia) follows the period lst

loril 20t8 ro ilsr March 2019. ln order to consoiidate the accounts of Ajanta Pharma Mauritius Ltd

i6"r""i,rr,",ri *i,f, that of the holding companv, we have u*l "ppl,'1tj,!l 9: management of the

comDanv to audit lhe reinstated accounts ofAjANTA PHARMA MAURITruS LTD (CoNolidated) for

trl1 i",ii,i rii npiiL zolS lo llst March 2019 under the companies Act in accordance with generally

accepled accountlng principles In India (lnd ASI'

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated lnd AS financial statements of AJANTA

PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD (CoNSOLIDATED) ("the Company") {hereinafter referred to as

the 'golding Company") and its subsidiaries {Holdint Company and its subsidiaries together referred to

as "the G;up"), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3lst March 2019' the

Consolidated itut"r"nt oi profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the

consolidated cash Flow statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant

u."""nti"g policies and other exPlanatory information (hereinafler. refened to as "the

Consolidaied' lnd AS financial statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting

policiesfollowedbyAjantaPharmaLtd.TheseConsolidatedfinancialstatementshavebeen
prepared solely to enable Ajanta Phama Ltd. to prepare its consolidated financial statements'

In our opinion and to the best of our information afld according to the explanations given to us,

the aforisaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accipted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and

profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

[lilI0I0lllilfll
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(lO) of the Companies Act, 2013 Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in lhe Auditot's Respotlsibilities fot the Audit of the Consolidqted linanciql
slate ents seclion ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants of India together with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the

provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2Ol3 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code ofEthics. We believe

that the audit evidence we havs obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were ofmost significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matteE were
addressed in the context of our audit of&e consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management's Responsibility for the CoDsolidated Ind AS FinaDcial Statements
The Company's Board of Direclors is responsible for the mafters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act,2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation oflhese Consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of thc Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting fmuds and other inegularitiesi selection and application of appropriate accounting

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the

preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free

ftom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Rcsponsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free ftom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detqct a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the ag$egate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremetrts

As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement ofProfit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Starement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accountsl
Rules,20l4.

(e) On the basis ofthe w tten representations received ftom the directors as on 3lst March, 2Ol9
taken on record by the Board of Directors, flone ofthe directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms ofSection 164 (2) ofthe Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe
Company and the opemti[g effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repon in
"Annexure A".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 1l ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
informatioD and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derilalive contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
lossesi and

iii. There has been no delay in transfening amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

.for G.R.Modi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's regi number: I 1261

CA Swapnil Modi

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
22'd Ap 2otg
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Annrrurc - A to the Auditors' Ileport

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible foi establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the internal control ovel financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia ('lCAl'). These responsibilities include the design'

implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that $cre operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and elncient conduct of its business. including adherence to

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial infomation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance \\'ith the Guidance

Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pedorm the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate intemal hnancial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
ofintemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakless
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or enot.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

tt. No.
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Report on the Internal Financill Colltrols under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143

ofthe Comptnies Act,2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS LTD. (Cotrsolidated)("the Company") as of 3l March 2019 in conjunction with
our audit ofthe Consolidatedfinancial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on thal date.



Meaning oflntern.l Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's intemal financial coltrol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control ovfl financial reporting includes

those policies and procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that tmnsactions are recorded as necessary to pernit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting p nciples, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assumnce regarding prcvention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use.

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a mate al effect on the financial

statements.

Ilheretrt Limitrtions of lnternal Financial Cortrols Over Finatrcial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management overide of controls, material

misstatements due to enor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject

to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

b€cause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriomte.

Firm's regi ber: 11261

CA Swapnil Modi
Partner
Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
22"d Apit 2otg

ir. iio.
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Opitrior
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial contols
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the intemal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lotemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the lDstitute ofchartered Accountants oflndia.
/or G.RModi & Co
Chartered Accountanls
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statements rs on 3l March 2019

l. Corporatelnformation

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Mauritius and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Phama Lrd., India. The address of its
regislercd office is located at BPML Building, Royal Road, Goodlands, Mauritius. The Consolidated
Financial statement ("CFS") comprises the Company and ils subsidiary (referred to colleclively as
the "Group").

The Croup is primarily involved in manufacturing and marketing of speciality pharmaceutical
quality fi nished dosages.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of
Directors on 22 April, 2019.

2. Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter refered to as the 'lnd AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (lndian Accounling
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
basis, which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount whercver applicable.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Company and ils
wholly owned subsidiary Ajanta Phama Mauritius (lnfl) Ltd. The financial statemenls of the

Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding
together the book vahes of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses afier eliminaling
intra-gloup balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profils resulting there from and are

presented 10 the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group's independent financial
statements. The statement ofprofit and loss and each component ofother comprehensive income are

attributed to the equity holders ofthe Company.

These consolidated financial statements ofthe Company and its wholly o\r,ned subsidiary have bcen

consolidated using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. When necessary, adjustments 6re made to the financial statements ofsubsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accountinS policies. The financial
statements ofthe subsidiaries used in consolidation are drawn up to the sarne reporting dale as that
ofthe Company i.e., year ended I I March 2019.

4. Functional and Presentation Clrretrcy:

Functional Currency of the Company is Mauritian Rupee (Mt R). These financial statements are
prepared & presented in Indian Rup€es (INR) as it is the functional curency of lhe Holding
Company.

5. Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest

M, NO.
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The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are pr€sented based on cureny'non_cunent
classification.

A li.bility is curretrt whetr it is:
. Expecled to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the purpose oftradin& or
. Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, o.
. There is no uncondilional right to defer $e settlemenl of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are treated as Non-Cunent.

Defened ta.\ assets and liabilities are classified as non-curenl assets and liabilities respectively

Operrting Cycle
Based on the nature ofproducts / activities ofthe Group and the normal time between acquisilion of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle
as I 2 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as curent and non-cunent.

7. Significanl Accoutrting Policies

7.1 Property, Plrnt atrd Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated al historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a sepaEte assel as appropriale, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and th€
cost ofthe ilem can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to wite oflthe cost of sssels, to their rcsidual
values overtheir estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Leasehold Improvement 20 years

Fumiture, Fixtures & Fittings 2 to 6 yeaff
omce Equipments 2 to 4 years

Plant & Machinerv 5 to 20 years

Motor Vehicles 5 years

property, plant and equipment arc determined by comparing

inchded in the statement ofprofit or loss

The assefs residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of
reporting p€riod. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimeted recoverable

amount,-iiis written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of

M, NO,
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Finrncial Statements as on 3l Msrch 2019

6. Current versus non-currell classificatioD:

Atr a$et i! current when it is:
. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or
r Held primarily for the purpose of tsading, or
. Expected to be .ealised within twelve months after the reponing period, ot
o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months affea lhe repodinS period.
All olher assets are classified as Non-Current.



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes ao the Consolidaaed Firrrlcial Stltements as on 3l March 2019
7.2 Finrncirllnstrumentr

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a linancial asset ofone entity and a financial
liability or equity irstrument of another entity.

['insncisl Assets

Classification

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequenlly measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characleristics ofthe financial asset.

I[itial Recognilion snd Mersuremelll

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assels nol
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cosls that are attributablc to the acquisition
ofthe financial asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose ofsubsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad calegories:
. Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)
. Financial assets at amo(ised cost
When ass€ts are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value throlgh other comprehensive income (FvToCI)).

Fitrarcial Assets me'sur€d at lrDortised cost (ret olrny write dowD for imprirment' ifatry)

Finarcial assets are measured at amortised cost when assel is held within a business model. whose

objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the assel
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 6nd interest. Such

financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, ifany. The losses arising from impairment are recosDised in the Statement

of profit and loss.

Finrncisl A$ets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive lncome ("[VTOCI")

Financial assets under this category arc measured initially as well as at each reponing date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both
collectinS contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements arc recognized
in the other comprehensive income.

FiDrtrcirl Aaret! me.sured ot Fair V.lue thmugh Profit or t os! ((FVTPL')

Financial 6ss€ts under this category arc measured initially ss well as at each reporting dat€ at fair
value with all changes rccognised in profit or loss.

Inve3tmetrl iD Equity lDltrumetrt

Equity instruments which arc held for tadinS are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments arc classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividendi,

M. NO.
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are recognised in the olher comprehensive income. There is no recycling ofthe amounts ftom other

comprehensive income to profil or loss.

Inveslmetrl in Debt lnstruments

A debt inslrumenl is measured at amortised cost or al FVToCI. Any debt instrument, which does

not meet the criteria for categorization as 6t amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognised in the Stalement ofptofit and loss.

DerecogDition of Finsncial Assets

A financial assel is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired or the Group has transferred its righls to rec€ive cash flows iiom lhe asset.

Impeirment of Filrencial Assets

ln accordance with lnd - AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets thal are debt instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial l,isbilities

Classificalion

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amonised cost o. FVTPL

Itritiol Recogtritiotr.ird Meosrrement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, bonowings and
payables, net of direclly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequenl Measuremenl

Financial liabilities at fair value through pmfil or loss include financial liabilities held for tmdinS
and financiAl liabilities designated upon initial recognilion as at fair value through profit or loss.

InteresFbearing loans ald bonowings are subsequently measured at amortised cosl using the
Effective Interest Rate (ElR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amo(is€d cost is calculated

by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and lees or costs thst are an inleglal
part ofthe ElR. The EIR amo.tisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profil and loss.

DerecoguitioD of Finrnciol Liabililieg

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled

or expircs. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from lhe same lender on

substantially different terms, or the terms ofan existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modificatioo is treated

of a new liability. The difference in
as the derecognition ofthe oriSinal liability and the recognition

the respective carrying amounls is recognised in the Statement

lLl. NO.
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of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities inchde trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrufts and derivative fi nancisl instruments.
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Derivrtive Finarcial Instrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contmcts to mitigate its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments 6re initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
valu€. Derivatives are canied as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

73 lDveotories

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighled ave.age basis)
and net realisable v6lue, cost ofwhich includes dulies ard taxes. Cost of imported raw materials and
packing materials lying in bonded warehouse includes the amount of customs duty. Finished
products including traded goods 6nd work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and nel realisable
value. Cost is arrived at on moving weighted average basis.

The cost of Inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchas€s, cost of conversion,
appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal capacity md other related cost
incuned in bringing the inventories to their prcsent localion and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less lhe
estimated costs ofcompletion and s€lling exp€ns€s-

Slow and non-moving material, obsolesces, defeclive inventory are firlly provided for and valued at
net realisable value.

Goods snd materials in transit are valued at actual cost incuned up to the dale of balance sheet.
Materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not w tten down, if the
finished producrs in which they will be used are exp€cted to be sold at or above cost.

1.4 C$h Aod Cash Equivslents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with o.iginal maturity p€riod of thrce months or less lhat are
resdily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject lo an insigDificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are rep.yAble on demand and form an integral pan of the
Group's cash management are included as a component of c{sh and c{sh equivalent for the purpose
of statement ofcash flow.

1.5 Crsh Flow Ststement

1.6 Ioreign Currency Trensactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign cunencies ar€ Dormally recorded at the exchange mte
prevailing on the date ofthe transaction.

Monetary items denominated in forcign currencies at the year€nd are rc-measurrd at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetarj/ foreign currency items are caried at cost.

Any income or expense on account ofexchange

M, NO,
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recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss
differcnce either on settlement or on restalement is

Cash flows are reported usinS the indirect method, whereby net profit before t&,( is adjusted for the
effects oftransactions ofa non-cash nalure, any deferrals or accruals of past or firture operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows- The cash flow from operating, investing and financing aclivities ofthe Croup are segregated.
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1,1 Rev€nueRecognition

The Group recognises revenue to depict the fansfer ofpromised goods or services to customers. In

accordance wilh Ind-AS ll5 Revenue from Conlmcts with Customers, the Group recognises

revenue by applying the following five steps:

. Step l: ldentiry the contract(s) with a customer

The Group applies the revenue recognition model to each contract with a customet once it is

probable the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled Contracts for this
purpose may be written, verbal or implied by customary business pmctices, bul must be

enforceable snd have commercial substance. In evaluating whether collection is probable, the

Group considers only the customet's 8bility and inlention to pay the consideration when due.

. Step 2: ldentiry the performarce obligations in the contract

Once the contract has been identified, the Group evaluates the terms and customary business

pnctices to identifo which promised goods or services should be accounted for as sepamte

performance obligations. The key determinant for identifoing a separate performance obligation
is whether a good or service, or a bundle, is distinct. A good or service is dislinct if the customer

can benefit from lhe good or service on its own or togelher with other readily available
resources and the good or service is sepantely identifiable fiom other promises in the contract.
The Crcup trcats each distinct good or service as a separate performance obligation.

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

The tansaction price is the amount ofconsideration to which an entity expects to be entitled and

includes:

-An estimale of any variable considemtion detemined using either a probsbility-weighted
expected value or the most likely amount, whichever better predicts the amount ofconsideration
to which the Group will be entitled

-The effect ofthe time v.lue of money, if there is a Iinancing component thot is significant to
the conhaci

-The fair value of any non-cash consideration

Step 4: Allocate the transaction p ce to the performance obligations in the contr8ct

The Group lsually allocates transaction price to each separate performance obligalion on a
.elative stand-alone selling price basis. When delermining stand-alone selling prices, the Group
uses observable information, if it is available. If stand-alone sellinS prices .re not directly
observable, lhe Group estimales such prices b6sed on reasonably available information, e.g.,

adjusted market assessment approach or an expected cost plus a margin approach. Only when
the stand-alone selling pricc of a good or service is highly variable or uncertain, the Company

use residual approach for allmation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performsnce obligation

The Croup determines whether it satisfies peaformance obligation by transferring control of a

promised good oa scrvice over time or at a point in time to the customer. A performance

obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meels one of the following ctiteria, in which

c.se, it is satisfied overtime:

-The customer simultaneously receives and

p€rformance as the Group performs

M. NO,
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consumes the benefits by the Group's
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-The Group's perfomance creates or enhances an asset that the clstomer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced

The Croup's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the Group and the
Croup has an enforceable right to pa,,rnent for performance completed to date. Revenue from
sale ofgoods is recoSnised, when all siSnificant risks and rewards are transferred to the buyer,
as per the tems of contacts and no significlnt uncertainty exists regarding amount of the
consideration that will be derived from the sale ofgoods.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significart risks and rewards ofownership have
been transferred to the extent thal buyer, usually on delivery of goods, it is probable that lhe
economic benefits will flow to lhe Croup, the associated costs and possible retum of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is neither continuing managemenl involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effeclive control over the goods sold and lhe amount of and lhe
revenue can be rcliably measured, regardless of when lhe payment is being made reliably. The
Group is principal in all of its rcvenue arrangements, since it is the primary obligor in all oI the

revenue &mngements, as it has pricinS latitude and is exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Provisions for chargeback, rcbates and discounts arc eslimaled and provided for in the year ofsales
and recorded as reduction of rcvenue.

Revenue is measured at the fair value oflhe consideration received or receivable. Amount disclosed
as revenue are inclusive of Excis€ Duty, excluding Goods and Service T&( (CST), Sales Tax or
Value Added Taxes or Service Taxcs or Duties collected on behalf of lhe govemment, and nel of
amounts collected on behalfofthird parties.

When the financing element is significant, the Group adjusls lhe tansaction pric€ for the time value
ofmoney. The objective, when adjusting the consideration for a significant financing component, is
to r€cognise revenue al the cash selling price.

Revenue from sale of technology / know how (rights, liccnces and other intangibles) are recognised
when performance obligation is completed as per the terms ofthe agreemenl. lncomes from services
are recognised when services are rcndered.

lnterest income is recognised on time proportion basis. lnsurance and other claims are recognised as

a revenue on cerlainty ofreceipt on prudent basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes

are accounted to the extent considercd rcceivable.

Dividcnd income is recognised when the Entity's right to receive the payment is eslablished, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

1.t Employee B€nelits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering s€rvice are classified as shon
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, shorl-ierm compensated absences,
perform6nce incentives etc. and the exlEcted cost of bonus, ex-gmtia are rccognised during the
period in which the employee renders related service.

Delined coDtributioo plrDs
Contributions to defined contribution plans arc rccognised as expense when employees have
rendercd services entitling them to such benefits.

The Group pays Social Security Cost as per local regulations. The Group has no further
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for as defined contribulion plans and the contributions are recognized as emPloyee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset 1o the extent

that a cash refirnd or a reduction in the hrure paynents is available.

For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance

allowances payable under lhe Employment RiShts Act 200E is provided for. The obligations
arisinS under this item are not firnded.

(iD Share-basedcompensation
The Group has no share based compensation plan

7.9 Borrowing Costs

Bonowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construclion or production of an asset that
necessadly takes a substantial period of time to get ready for ils inlended use or sale are capitalised
as pan ofrhe cosl ofthe assel. All other bonowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist o{ interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borowing offirnds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange diffeaences to lhe extert regarded as an
adjustment to the borowinS cosls.

7.10 I2rs€

A leased asset is depreciated over the usefril life of the 6sset. However, if therc is no reasonable
certainty th6t the Croup will obtain ownership by the end ofthe leased term, the asset is depreciated
over the short€r ofthe estimated usefirl life ofthe asset and the leased teIm.

1.ll Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity sharc is computed by dividing the net profil atfibutable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
pe od. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the nel profit attributable to the

equity holders of the company by the weighted average numbet of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number ofequity sharcs that

could have been issued upon conve6ion ofall dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potenlial

equity shares are adjusied for lhe proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at

fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed convened as ofthe beginning ofthe period,

unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity
period presented.
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shares are determined independently for each

The determination of whelher an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance ofthe
armnSemenl at the inception date, whether fulfilment ofthe armngement is dependent on the use of
a sp€cific asset or assets or lhe arrangement conveys a ght to use the asset even if that ight is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Assets acquired on leases where a sigrificant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are

retained by lessor are classified as operating leases. Leases rentals arc charged to the statem€nt of
profit and loss on straight line basis.

Finance leases thal transfer substantially all ofthe risks and benefits incidental to ownership ofthe
leased item, are capitalised at the commencemenl ofthe lease at the fair value oflhe leased property
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and a reduction in the lease liability so as to achieve a constant mte of
inleresl on the remaining balance ofthe liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss.
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7.12 Income Tereg

Income tax expense comprises currcnt and deferred income tax.

Income tax exp€nse is recognized in net profit in the stltement of profit and loss excepl to the extenl
that it rclates to items recognized direcdy in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The clrrcnt income tax charge is bssed on taxable income for the year
calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively en.cted by the €nd of the reporting
period.

Defened income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on tenrporary difrerences arising
between the lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, if the deferred income tax arises from inilial recogrilion of 6n asset or liability in a

&ansaction, olher than a business combination, that at lhe time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, il is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of rcponing period and
arc expected to apply in the period when the related deferr€d income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled. Defened tax assets are recognised to the extenl that I is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

7,13 Dividerds to Shrrcholders

Annual dividend distribulion to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the shareholdeB. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board ofDirectoIs. Dividend payable is recognised dirrctly in equity.

1.14 Provisions, Contingent Lirbiliti$, ContiDgent A$ets and CommitmeDts

General
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group h6s a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

requircd to settle the obligation, in respect ofwhich a reliable esiimate can be madc.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) arc not discounted to ils
present value and are determined based on best esiimate required to s€ttle the obligation al the
balance sheel d.le. These are reviewed at each balance sh€et date and adjusted to reflect the currenl
best estimates.

lfthere is any exp€ctation that some or all ofthe provision will be rcimbumed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a sepamte asset but only when the rrimbuBement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit 6nd loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

Iflhe effect of the time value ofmoney is material, provisions are discounted using a curent pre-tax
mte that reflects, when appropiate, the risk specific to the lisbility. When discounting is used, the
incrcase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

CoDliDgeDt lirbility ii dir.l6.d iD the c.!e of:
. A present obligation arising fmm pasl events, when it is not probable that an outflow of

resourcas will be required to settle the obligation;
. A prcsent obligation aising from past events, when no rcliable estimates is possible;
. A possible obligation arising from pas events, unless the probability of outflow ofresources is

remole
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Contingenl liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets

are neither rccoSnised nor disclosed in the Financial Slatements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (nel of advances) issued lo parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments ere reviewed at each balance

sheet date.

Asset RetireDenl Obligation
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operaling lease arranSements where the

Company has a binding obliSation at the end of the lease pe od to restore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
setlle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as pan of the cost of that
particular ass€t. The cash flows are discounted at a cufient pre-tax rale that reflecls the risks specific
lo the decornmissioning liability. The unwinding of lhe discount is recognised in the income
statemenl as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriaie. Changes in estimated filture costs or in the discount rate applied are
added to or deducted fiom the cost olthe asset.

7.15 Fair value messuremenl

Financials Stalements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financ ial position:
. Derivative financial instruments are measured al faL value received from Bank.
. Mufual Funds ale measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).
. Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Repon.

The fair value of an assel or a liability is measu.ed using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that ma*et participants act in the[ economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement ofa non-financial ass€t takes into account a market parlicipant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficienl data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimising the use ofunobservable inpus.

All assers and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemenls are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpur that

is significsnt to the fair value measurcment as a whole:
. Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical ass€ts or liabilities'

. Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significanl to the fair

value measuremenl is directly or indirectly observable.

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest

value measufemenl is unobservable

M. r,lo.
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level input that ificant to the fair

The Group measures financial instrumenls, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS I13.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell sd asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction b€tween market parlicipants at the measurement date.



The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arangements that such cont.acts arc in the nature of operating leases.

(b) Multiple elemeDt cotrlrocts wilb verdoF
The Group has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods and

rendering ofservices. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent ofthe value

of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and se ices are

accounted for based on theit relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies

with finite life under the conracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have

been accounted under Property, Plant and E4uipment and/o. as Intangible assets, since the

Group has economic ownership in these assets. The Croup believes that the current

treatment reprcsents the substance of the arranSement.

(c) Dele nitratioD of fuDcliood curreDcy
Each entity in the group determines its oPn funclional curency (the cunency ofthe primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) .nd items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional curency. Ind AS 21, "The
Eff€.ts of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales" prescribes the factors to be considered for
the purpose of determinalion of furctional curency. Management uses its judgement to
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For assels and liabilities that are rccogDised in the financial statements on a rccuring basis, lhe
Group d€termines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the f6ir value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each rcporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of ass€ts and
liabililies on the basis ofthe nature, chaEcte stics ard risks ofthe asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

7.16 RecetrlaacoutrtiogprcnounceEeDl!

Strrdrrds fusued but Dot yet cllective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in April2019, has notified Ind AS l16, t*ases. Ind AS l16 sets

out lhe principles for recognition, presentation and disclosure of leases. Ind A S I I 6 is lhe equivalent
of IFRS (lntemational Financial Reporting Standards) 116. lnd AS 116 shall be applied from
financial years beginning on or after lst April, 2019.

These amendments arc not expected to have any impact on the Croup.

7,17 Critic.l..routrtitrg jrdgeDert!,e!tim.t6.nd.$onptioDs

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affeci the rcported amounts of rcvenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabililies, at the end of lhe reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estiftales could result in outcomes that require a material
sdjustment to the carrying amount ofthe assels or liabilities in future periods.

(o) Arirngemetrl cori.initrg ler3e
At the inception of an armngement, the Croup determines whether the aranSement is or
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arangement that contains a lease,

the Group sepantes payments and other consideration required by the arrangemenl into
those for lhe lease and those for the other elements on the basis oftheir rclative fair values.
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Property, Pl.Dl .trd equipDcnt
Determination ofthe estim6ted useful life oftangible assets and the assessment as to which
components ofthe cost may be capitslized. Useful life oftangible assets is bosed on the life
of useful livevrates prescribed by the GAAPS oflhe respective counties. Assumptions also

need to be made, when the Company assesses, whetiet an assel may be capitalised and

which componenls of the cost olthe asset may be capilalised.

(e) Int.trgible Assets
Inlemal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of lntangible assets

Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

(f) Recognition and meosurement of deliDed berefit obligationg
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of acluarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectoncy. The discoum rate is delermined with
reference to market yields at the end ofthe reporting period on the govemment bonds. The
period to maturity ofthe underlying bonds correspond lo the probable maturity ofthe post-
employmenl benefi t obligations.

(s) Recognition of deferred lir .$etr .trd iEcome lax
Defered tax asset is recognised for 6ll the deductible temporsry differcnces to lhe extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available againsl which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that laxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assas.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred ta.\ assets and li.bilities. The Company reviews al each balance sheel date the
carrying amount of defered tax assets. The faclors used in estimates may difTer from actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
slatements.

Deferred ta\ assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent lhat it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
managemenl judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timinS and lhe level of future t&xable profits, future tax
planning stateSies and recent business performances and developments.

Recognitiotr rnd meesurement of otbcr provisioN
The recognilion ard measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at

(d)
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(h)

the balance sheet date. The actual outllow of
from the figurc included in orher provisions.

resources at a firture date thercfore, vary

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Uncertainties exist with rcspect to the interpretation of complex t&1 rcgDlations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Civen the wide range ofintemational business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contraclual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate firture adjustments to tax income and expense alre6dy
recorded. The Group eslablishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of&udils by lhe lax authorities ofthe respeclive countries in which it operates.

The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prcvailing in the respective country.
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ItrsurrDcc claiE!
lnsumnce claims are recognised when the Group has r€asonable certainty of recovery

(k)

0)
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(i) CoDtingencies
Managemenl judgement is rcquired for estimating the pssible outflow of resources, ifany,
in respect of contingencies/claidlitigations agaiDst the Group as it is nol possible to predict
the outcome ofpending matters with accuracy.

0) Allotvooce for rtrcollected account! rcceivoble and rdvrtrces
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowemces for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
wriften off when management seems them not collectible. [mpairment is made on lhe
expected credit loss€s, which are the present value of the c6sh shortfall over the expected
life ofthe financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financialass€ts arc based on assumption about risk ofdefault
and expected loss rates. Judgement in makinS these assumplion and selecting the inputs lo
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as

forward looking estimates at the end ofeach reportinS period.

ImpriImeDt review!
An impairment exists when the carrying value ofan asset or cash genemting unil ('CCU')
exceeds its recovemble amount. Recovemble amount is the highe, of its fair value less costs
to selland its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in us€, cenain assumplions are required to be made in
resp€ct of highly uncenain matters, including management's expectations of groMh in
EBITDA, Iong term gro\ath rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved.
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidrted FirlaDcial Statemerts for the year ended 3l March 2019

72. Capital MaDagement

Group's policy is to mainlain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management moritors the retum on
capital, as well as the level ofdividends to equity shareholders. The board of direclors seeks to maintain
a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of bonowing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Group's target is to achieve a relum on
capital above 30%; in 2018-l9 the retum was 47% and in 2017-t8 the rettm was 67yo.

Group monitots capilal using a ratio of'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equiq/. For this purpose, adjusled
net debt is defined as total li6bilities, comprising interest-b€aring loans and bonowings and obligations
under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and sho( term investments. Adjusted equity
comprises all components of equity.

croup's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted nel debt to equity ratio at 3l March 2019

was as follows. { in Lacs

Parliculars 3l Msrch 2019 Jl March 2018

Debt (Debt + Cu.rent Liabilities) 919.35 t,3Et.94
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 4,121.?4 2,948.33

Net Debl (1,r81.90) (r,s66.39)
EquiE B t0,703.98 I I,951.44
Net Debt to Eauity ratio A,ts

23. Errnings Per share (EPS):

The numemtor and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluled Eam Share

24. Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS l9 'Employee Benefits', the Group offers its employees Social Security Cost and

Severance Allowance. During the year, the Croup has recognised the followinS amounts in the account:
I in Loca

3l March
2019

3l March
20lttParticulars

Bssic and Dilutcd farnings Per Sharc:
Profit attributable to Equity shareholderc- for B6sic EPS (a in
Lacs)

4,880.29 1.407.',78

B Nil NilAdd: Dilutive efrect on profit ({ in Lacs)
Profit attributable to Equity shareholders for computing Dilured
EPS (l in Lacs)

C=A.B 4,t60.29 1,407.18

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shar€s outst nding - for
Basic EPS

D 6,11,79r 6,I1.791

E NilAdd: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of Equity
Shares

F=D+E 6,13,791 6,I1,79tWeighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS
100 100Face Value Der Equity Share (MUR)

1,206.89Bssic Earninss Per Shere ({) A,'D 795.1I
795.11 1,206.E9Diluled Earniuss Per Shares ({) C/F

Jl March 2018Particulars 3l March 2019

Social S€curity Cost I l.7lA\ |.27
Severance Allowance ./,/^ 7.20}Y<4\ 5.06

llo/Total \p\\ 18.91 t6.J3

i0757a
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the CoDsolidated FinrDcial Strtemetrls for the yeor eDded 3l March 2019

For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of s€verance allowances

payable is provided for under the Employment Rights Act. It has been assumed that the rate of frrture

salary increases will be equal to the discount rate.

25. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk msnagemcot

Fair vrlue meosnrcmertr { in Lacs
3l March 2019 3l March 2018

Finsncial IostrumeDls by cetegory FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amorlised Cost
Finstrcial Assets
Investment in Mutual Funds 1.298.76 757,35

Trade Receivables 3,543.04 6,180.46

O$er Non-Current Financial Assets 24.t5 22.07

Cash and cash equivalents 4,121.24 2,948.33
Total l'insncial Assets 1,29a.76 7,688.,t3 151.35 9.150.E6

Finsncial Liabilities
Other Current Financial Liabilities 939.3s I.38 t.94
Total Fitr{trciel Liabilities 939.35 lJ8l.9,t

Frir V{lue H I in Lacs

Level J Ifone or more ofthe significant inputs is not based on observable market dat4 the instrum€nt
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisled equity securities, etc. included in level 3.

A. Finstrcirl risk mrDrgement
Group has exposurc to following risks arising from financial instruments
. Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
. Market risk

3l March 2019 31 Msrch 2018
Financisl sssets snd liabilities meesured rt frir
value

Level

I II IIT I II III
Financial assets

Non recurring frir value meesurement
lnvestment in Mutual Funds 1.298.76 '757.35

Trade Receivables 3,543.04 6,180.46
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 24.15 22.01
Cash and cash equivalents 4,121.24 2,948.33
Totrl Finsncirl Asrers 129a.16 7-688.43 757.35 9.150.86

Financial l,iabilities
Other Curent Financial Liabilities 939.35 r,381.94
Totsl FiDancial Liabilities 939.3s l3El.9,l

M NO,
107571

Level I - The hierarchy in level I includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using lhe closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value offinancial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like forward
conEacts) is detennined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as liftle as possible on entity-specific estimales. Ifallsignificant inputs required to fairvalue as
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level

H



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated FitraDcirl St.teDents for tbe year ended 3l March 2019

Rfu k manrgemeDl frsmework
Croup's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developingand monitoring the
Company's risk management policies, underthe guidance ofAudit Committee.

Croup's risl management policies are established to identi! and analyse the risks faced by il, to set

appropriate risk limits and conrols and to monilor risks and adherence to limits. fusk managemenl
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflecl changes in market conditions and the Group's
activities. Group, through its training and procedures aims to mainlain a disciplined and constructive
confol environment in which all employees undeNtand their roles and obligations.

Group's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy ofthe risk mansgement framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by intemal
audit. Intemal audil underlakes both rcgular and ad hoc rcviews of risk management controls and
procedurcs, the results ofwhich are reported to the audit committee.

i. Credit ik
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under. Iinancial instrument

or customq contract, leading to a financial loss. The Croup is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily lrade receiv.bles).

Summary ofthe Company's exposure to credit risk byage ofthe outstanding from various customers
is as follows: { in Lrcs

Parliculars 3l Merch 2019 3l March 201tt

Not past due but impaired
Not pasl due not impaired
Pasl due nol impaired 3,541.04 6,180.46

- l- 180 days 3,342.69 5,925.58

- l8l-365 davs
- more than 365 days 200.t5 254.88

Past due impaired
- l- 180 days
- lEl-365 days
- more than 365 days

.) Trrde receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Croup's established policy,
procedures and control r€laiing to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables, which
are non-iDterest beadng, are mainly from stockists, distributors and customers. Except for, one

large client, the Group has no significant concentr6tion ofcredit risk, with exposure spread over
a number ofcounterparlies and customers. The Group has policies in place lo ensure that sales

of products and services arc made lo cuslomers with an appropriate credit history.

An impairmenl analysis is performed at each rcpodng dale on an individu.l basis for major
clients. In addition, a large number ofminot receivables are gouped into homogenous groups

and assessed for impairment collectively. Tle calculation is based on historical data. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reponing date is the carrying value of each class of
finarcial ass€ts. The group does not hold collateral as security. The group evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to rade rcceivables as low, as its customers are located in
severaljurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

u. NO.
lltara



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes lo tbe Consolidrted FiD!trcial Strtemeots for the year ended 31 March 2019

b) Fitranci.linstrumeots
Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by
mutual funds having a credit rankinS of atleast 3 and above from CRISIL or equivalent rating
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking pllblished extemal credit rankinS.
Based on its on-goin8 assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its exposure to
v6rious counterpanies.

lt, Liquidity rtuk
Liquidity sk is the risk that lhe Croup may not be able to meet its present and firture cash and

collateral obli8ations wilhout incurring unacceptable losses. The Group's objective is to, at all times
maintain optimum levels ofliquidity to meel its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash managemenl system. lt meintains adequate

sources offinancing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banls at 6n optimised cost.
Wo*ing capital requirements are adequately addressed by intemally generated firnds. Trade
receivables are kept within manageable levels.

iii. Market risk
Market sk is the risk lhat changcs in market prices - such as foreign exchange mtes, interest rstes
and equity prices - will affect the Croup's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimisinglhe retum. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments. Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange r.tes and interc9 rates. Alltransactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the sk management committee.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion offinancial
instrumenls in foreign curencies arc all constanl. The analysis excludes lhe impacl ofmovements
in market variables on the carrying value ofpostemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the
eflecl of the assumed changes in lhe respective market risks. This is based on the financial asses
and financial liabilities held as of3l March 2019 and 3l March 2016.

r) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to curency risk to the extent that lhere is 6 mismatch between the
currencies in which sales, puachases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which
these transactions are primarily denominated are US Dollars, Euro and Mauritian Rupee.

The Group does not have any policy to hedge against foreign cun€ncy exposure. In resp€ct of
other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group's policy is lo
ensure that its net exposure is kepl to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign cunencies
at spot mtes when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The following table aralyses foreign currency risk as of 3l March 2019 and 3l Msrch 2018:
a itr L.c!

Ptrrticulars 3l March 2019 3l Merch 201,1

Bank Balances 4,121.24 2,94E.33

Trade Receivahles 3,543.04 6,t80.46
Other Curent Assets 1,045.51 412.t7
Net Assets / (Liabilities) E,709.81 9541.66

M. NO
107574



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Filtancial Statements for the vear eDded 3l Msrch 2019

For the year ended 3 I March 2019 and 3l March 2018, cvery percentage poinl depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate betwe€n the MUR and respective curencies has affected the
Croup's incremenlal profit before tax as per below:

{ iD Lscs

Year Chrrgc in curretrcy
exchatrge tate

f,ffect on profit
before tax

3l March 20I9 +5% I (-5%) 229.43 t(229.43)
3l March 2018 +5% I (-5%) 329.77 t(329.77\

26. Note on foreigo currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Group has not entercd inlo Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
s that have rlol been miti a derivative instrument or olherwise are as below

b) Itrteftst nte risk
lnteresl rate dsk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofa financial insrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Croup's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates is Nil as lhere are no borrowings in the Group.

c) Pfice rilk
Croup does not hlve any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity invest nents by group.

27. Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 17 - "Leases":

The Group have taken various premises under opemting lease. These arc geneolly cancellable and
ranges from I I months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some ofthese lease a$eements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by lease

amngements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. The lease payments of { 46.29
tacs (Pr€vious Year t 41.40 Lacs) are recog,ised in Statement of Profil and Loss under "Rent" under
Note 21.

The future minimum lease payments and payment profile of non-cancellable operaling leases are as

under: { itr L{cs
Particule13 3l Msrch 2019 3l March 2018
Not later than one year 46.8',7 44.21

Later than one year but nol laler than five years 217.83 200.16
Less than five yearc Nil Nil

A) RelrtioNhips:
C.tegory I - HoldiDg Comp.Dy & Fcllow Sublidisry
Ajanla Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)
Ajanta Phama USA Inc. (Fellow Subsidiary)

ForeigD Currency
Amt in Lrca

ParticulNrs 3l March 2019 3l Mrrch
20lt

3l Mrrch
2019

3l March
2018

Foreign
Currency

Amount Receivable 4,588.57 6,591.33 59.08 81.58 EURO

M, NO

t in Lacs

28. Contingent Liabilities and commitm€nts:

There are no contingenl liabilities and commitments by the Group.

29. Rclated party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Firrncial Strtemenls for the year ended 3l March 2019

Catagory II - DirectoB, Key Management PeBotrnel & their Relrtives:
Mr. Vinayak Muzundar Director (APML)
Mr. Suttian D€erpaul Director (APML)
& Relatives ofKey Management Personnel

tmnsactions were carried out wilh rel&ted { in Lrcs

Amounl outsland es otr 3l Mirch 2019 { itr Lacs

30. ContributiontowardsCorporateSocialResponsibility

The ulars ofCSR are as follows I itr Lacs

.11. Remuneratio[ to Auditors : { in Lacs

Particulers 3l March 2019 3l Mercb 20lE
Audit Fees 10.53 9.75

For Certificalion and Other Matters L00 1.00

32. The Group has one segment ofactivity namely "Pharmaceuticals"

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For aod on behrlfofBo.rd of Directors of
Ajents Phsrms (Mauritius) LiEited

(ICAI FRN: 1126

4'-n^''
Swapnil Modi
Partner

3l Mrrch
2019

3l March
20lE

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Purchsse of Goods:I
10,294.79I 1,597.54Aianta Phama Ltd., India

Key Manaqemenl Compensation:
Short Tcrm f,mploYee Benefits

70.81II 16.5 |vinayak Muzumdar & Suttian Deerpaul
I 6,097.55 4,344.14l Dividend Paid to Aianta Pharlna Ltd.,lndir
I Nil t,7t9.1. Advence Received from Aianta Pharmr USA Inc.
I NiI E2.675. lnterfft Received from Ai.Dts Pharma USA Inc.

3l M"rch 2018Sr. No. Particulars Crtegory
Advance Receivable :

4t2.81Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India I 1,045.51

Sr. No. Parliculars 3l Marcb 2019 3l Mrrch 20lE
Nita, ConslructiorL/ acquisition of assel

b. On purposes other than (a) above 28.t9 8.02

Mumbai, 22 April20l9

Yog6h M. Agrsrval
Director

ln lerms ofour report rtlached

CategorY

3l March 2019

l.

M.lro.
tof57a
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Itrdeperdent Auditor's ReDort
To 3he Members of A.lania puln,ua pHILlpplNES INC.

Report on the Slalrdalonc Financial Statements

;ffi:"ffX["r,1i,lim,:f*-Yl-Tf LTPPINES INC are beins audited under rhe roca] iar.rs

;n,# "r[::lli iltffl 11 ilr,:?l[:f Hl,,iljfl 1,J1,:ii :lf:::1:TjiJ]"1i:
appointed by ii,; ;;;;.d;:inlLlPPINEs INc with that or the comoanv, we have been
pHe-qvn iHrrrpprNEt ;l'ic ;;'1"'""1Ttiv,lo 

audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
companies Acr in acco;;; il.;::fi':::.lLlr":ffi| 

"t, ;:,i1,;,#:Xrll,,?,#;; 
;;

Opinion
We have audited the accomDanvin.pHenvn puif Dpmuii^'[*il],'i: ^u-oalone 

Ind AS financiat sratements ot AJANTA
as at : r sr varch j;];.' ;: ffi ffil, #",lTTi',1*,",J,h:,Tji"ff i,ffi :|flcomprehensive income), the slandalone. Cash ff"* s""rn""i,'**"'t,i1'j,"r" statement ofChanges in tquiry lor rhe vecr rhen ended. and a summ".y 

"lii",ie"ri#;lccounrrng policiesand orher explanarory informarion {hereinafler ,"f"...d r; ;;;'#;::d; rnd As llnancialstatemenrs") prepared in accordance wirh group accounting p"f;l*"iill";"d uy Ajanta pharmaLtd. These Standatone financial statements i*" t"", -pia"."a 
*i"i/ii 

"nuul" 
a.;_o,"prepare its consolidated fi nancial statements.

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,the aforesaid standalone financial statemenrs gtr" ,r," tn-rt#i iJr.';"0;#fi1, the Act in themanner so required ard give a true and fair ul"" in -nro.rni,y irirr, ii"'ui"orn,ing prin.ipt..generatlyaccepredin tndia.of rhesrareof affairs.f ,t;a;;;";;';.';i i)iLnr,.ro,n,u,oprofiUloss. .r.rr?gc.r ia egllly and if s cash flows for the year endJJ;; ;;il":
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with 

-the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified undersection t43(t0) of rhe companies Acr. 20rf-. our ;rr"rrtiri,i..'-t l'f,ose srandards aretunher described in the Audiror't R?Vons.ibilities lor tn erJi A lf i)rnciat Stdtementssection of our repofl. we are indenendenr or,rr" C"rip_y li ** ,0"!n{!'*irr{ rn, ,or" o7 u,ru,issued by the Insrit,te of Chartered Accountants of fnaia togafre. wittr-,fr" 

"i'""f requirementsthat are relevant to our audit of the financial ,,",.r*i, _a?,f," p..ri.l.* 
"f,fr" 

CompaniesAcl. 2013 and the Rules rhereunder. and.we have fulfi,ed our 
"1f;;.,"hi;;i 

responsibilities inaccordance wilh lhese requiremenr, -a th" coa" of Sthi"i. w"i.ili*'ui" *" audir evidercewe have oblained is suflicient and appropriu,. ro pro"iJ. u Uuri, f";;ilft;

MNO
r07574



Marsgement's Respoosibility for the StandaloDe Ind AS Financi&l Statemetrts
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone hnancial
statements that give a tme and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
(changes in equity) and cash flows ofthe Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Art. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding ofthe assets ofthe Company and for
preventing and detecting liauds and other inegularities; selection and application oi appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudint; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls. that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or enor_

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in out professional judgment, were ofmost significance
in our audit ofthe financial statements ofthe current period. These matters were addre;ed in the
context ofour audit ofthe financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an
auditor's report that includes our opidon. Reasonable assurance is a high Ievel ofassurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements cal arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statementi.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company,s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concem basis of accouoting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board ofDirecton are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremetrts

As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the pwposes of our audit.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appea$ from our examination ofthose books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement ofProfit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

M, NO.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accountiog
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis ofthe *ritten representations received fiom the directors as on 3l st March, 20 19
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on 3lst March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the AcL

(0 With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A".

(g) With resp€ct to the other matters to be included in the Auditor,s Report in accordance with
Rule I I ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial posirion;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferdng amounts, required to be transfened, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Firm's regi : l126t',l

CA Swapnil Modi

Membership number
Mumbai
22"d Aptil 2olg
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Annexure - A to the Auditors' Reporr

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidanae Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls a[d, both issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficieflt and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

1075/.

We have audited the intemal finaflcial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
PHILIPPINES INC. ("the Company") as of 3l March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone fimncial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for ltrtertral Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal contol stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that \ ere operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

erors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial infomation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.



Meaning oflnternal FinrDciil Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemal pulposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedues that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the tansactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
.eceipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of Intemal Financirl Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to enor or fraud may occur and not b€ detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degee of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all matedal respects, an adequate intemal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 3l March 2019, based on the intemal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal conhol
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing
issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accouotants of India.

.lor G.R.Modi & Co
( hartered Accountonrs
Firm's registrati r: I l26l7W

CA Swapril Modi
Pqrher
Memb€rship number: I 07574
Mumbai
22"d Apit zotg
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to lhe Finsncial Statements as on 3l March 2019

l. Corporatelnformation

Aja[ta Pharma Philippines lnc. is a limited liAbility company incorporated and domiciled in
Philippines and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., tndia. The address of its
regislercd oflice is located at Unit 710, AXA Life Bldg., 12E6, Sen. cil Puysr Ave., Malari Ciry,
Philippines.

Company is primarily involved in the business ofphannaceutical and relaled activilies

The Financial Statement for the Company werc authorised for issue by the Company's Board of
Directors on 22 April,2019.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial slatemenl oflhe Company have been prepared in all male al aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian AccountinS Standards
(hercinafier refened to as the 'lnd AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (lndian Accounting
Stand6rds) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting

principles generally ac-cepted in India.

The financial stalements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cosl basis.

which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount wherever applicable.

3. Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional currency ofthe Company is Philippine Peso (Php). The financial statement is Prepared &
prcs€nted in lndian Rupees (lNR) as it is the functional cu.rency ofthe Holding Company.

Rounding ofAmounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have t€en rounded oIf to the nearest

lacs-

5, Current versus Non-Current classification

The assets.nd liabililies in the balanct shc.t.tt pr€sented bosed on curre /non-curent

classification.

An .ssct ir curEDl whan il ill
. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal oper.ting cycle, or
. Held primadly for the purpose oftrading, or
. Expectd to b€ realised wilhin twelve mo hs after the reporting p€riod, or
. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fiom being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve monihs after the reporlinS period.
All other assets are classified as non-currcnt.

4

A lirbility is curreDt wheD it i3:
. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the purpose offading, or
. Due to be settled within twelve months after the rcporting period, or
r There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability

after the repo.ting period.

M 
'{O.1C/,ta

for at least months



Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities resP€ctively

OperrtiDg Cycle
Based on the nature ofprodlcrs / sctivities ofthe Group and the rDrmal time between acquisilion of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its op€rating cycle
as l2 months for the purpose ofclassification of its assets and liabilities as curent and non-curent.

6. Significant Accounting Policies

6.1 Propcrty, Plaot and Equipmenl

Property, Plant and Equipment are initially measured al cost and are presented in the financial
statemenls at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impdilment
in value. Such cosl includes the cost of replacing pafl of the property, plant and equipment at the
time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-tMay
servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for is intended use. Cost also includes any related asset retirement obligation (ARO) and interest
incurred during the construction period on funds borrowed to finance the construction of the
projects. Expenditures incurred after the fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance and overhaul cosls, are normally charged to deferred development cost in the
period lhe cost are incuned. Major repairs are capitalized as part of property and equipmenl only
when it is probable that firtu.e economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company
and the cost ofthe items can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on a sraight-line basis to w.ite off the cost of 6ssets, to thei. residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Condominium Units 20 years

Fumiture, Fixtures & Fittings 2 years

OlIice Equipments 2 years

Compulers 2 years

MotorVehicles 5 years

The carrying amounts of prop€rty and equipment are reviewed for impairment when ev€nls or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Fully
depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
deprecialion and amortization are recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulaled amortization and any accumulated impairment loss. These are amonized over
estimated useful life using the straight line method. lf there is an indication that there has been a

An item of property and equipmenl is derecognized when either it has been disposed ofor
when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected fiom its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the retirement and disposal ofan item of property and
equipment (calculated as the diflerence between the net disposal proceeds and the cam/ing arhount
ofthe asset) is included in profit or loss in the p€riod ofrelirement or disposal.

6.2 Introgible Ass€ts

M, NO.
r07574
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Notcs to the Finaocial Statements as on 3l March 2019

All other liabilities are treated as non-current.



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the FiDrncisl StaterDents as on 3l M.rcb 2019

significant change in amortization rate, usefrrl life or residual value of an
amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

intangible asset, the

Intangible assets are derecognized when these ass€ts are disposed of or when no future economic
benefits arc expected from lhese assets.

6J FiDrtrcirllnstrumeDts

A financial instrume is any contmct that gives dse to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial
liability or equity ins$ument of another entity.

Financiel Assels

Clsssificalion

Company classifics financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value throuSh profit or loss, on lhe basis of its business model

for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics oflhe financial ass€t.

IDitirl Recogtritiotr.Dd Mearurc[tcnl

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assels not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
ofthe financialasset.

Subsequent Measuremenl

For the purpos€ of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

. Financial assets at fair v6lue (FVTPL / FVTOCI)

. Financial assets at arnortised cost
When assets sre measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognis€d in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive

income (i.e. fair value through olher comprehensive income (FVTOCI))

Finatrcirl Assets meolured sl Altrortiscd Cost (Det of aDy rdrile down for impairDent, ifrEy)

Financial assets are measurcd al amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose

objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the 6sset

give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and int€rest- SDch

financial assets are subs€quently measured at aflortis€d cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method less impairment, ifany. The losses arisinS from impairment ffe recognis€d irl the Slalement

ofprofit ard loss.

Fitr.Dci.t A3gels me.rurtd .t F.ir Vrluc lhrough Otber ComprebcEsiv. Incomc ("FVTOCI")

Financial assets under this category are measured inilially as well as at each reporting date ar fair

value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements arc recognized

in the other comprehensive income.

Fi!.trcirl A3lcls merlured .t Fsir Vslue lhrougb Prolit or Irse ("FVTPL")

Financial assets under this calegory are measured initially as well 6s at each reporting date at fair

M NO,
107574
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial StrtemeDts as on 3l March 2019

IDvestmenl in Equity Instfirments

Equity instruments which are held for tmdinS are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling ofthe amounts from other

comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Investment iIl Debl Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or al FVTOCI. Any debt instrument, which does

not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value wilh all changes

recognised in the Statement ofpmfit and loss.

Derecogoition of Fitrancirl Assels

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the righls to rcceive c.sh flows fiom the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its righls to receive cash flows fiom ihe asset.

Impairment of FiDstrciel Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets thal are debt instauments
and trade receivables.

FiDrDcirl Lirbilities

Classilicrtiotr

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subs€que[tly measured at aDonised cost or FVTPL

lnitial RecogDitioD rtrd Me$uremert

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable tmnsaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and dedvative fi nancial instruments.

Subsequeot Mexsurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit ot loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cosl using the
Effective Interest Rate (ElR) Inethod. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities .re derecognised as well as through EIR amonisation process. Amonised cosl is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that a,e an integral
part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the stalement ofprofit and loss.

Derccogritioo of Firsrci.l Liabiliti.3

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an exisring financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially differcnt terms, or the terms ofan existing liability are subslantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the

M. NO,
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the FinsDcial Stltements rs on 3l Marcb 2019

recognition ofa new liability. The difierence in the resp€ctive carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative Financial lnstrument

The Company uses derivative financial insfumeDts, such as forward currency contracls to mitigate
its foreiS, curency risks. Such derivalive financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contr6ct is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives ale carried as financial ass€ts when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

6.4 Inventorie3

Finished products including traded goods are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighted average
basis) and net realisable value. The cost of Inventodes have been computed to include all cost of
purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal
capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their presenl location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated costs ofcompletion and selling expenses.

SIow and non-moving obsolesces, defective inventory are fully provided for and valued al net

realisable value. Goods in transil are valued at actual cost incurred up lo lhe date ofbalance sheel.

6.5 Cssh And Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash al bank including fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less thal are

readily convertible lo known amounts of cash and which 6re subject to an insiSnificant risk of
changes in value. Bank ov€rdrafts that are repayable on demand 8nd form an integral pan of the

Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose

of statement ofcash flow.

6-6 Crsh Flow Slrtements

Cash flows are reponed using the indircct method, whereby nel profit before tax is adjusted for the

ellects of transaclions of a non-cash nature, any defermls or accruals of Past or future op€rating cash

receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash

flo\rs. The cash flow from operating, investing and financinS activities of the Company are

se8regated.

6.1 Forcigtr Currercy TIrDsrclloos

Revenue Transactions denominaled in foreign currencies ar€ normally recorded at the exchange rare

prevailing on the date ofthe Iansaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign cunencies at the year_€nd 8re rc-measwed al the exchalge

mte prevailinS on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign cunency items arc caried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchdge difrercnce either on settlement or on restatemenl is

recognised in the Statement of Profit 6nd Loss.

M- NO,
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6.8 RevenueRecogbilion

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers.

In accordance with Ind-AS l15 Revenue from Contmcls with CustomeIs, lhe Company recognises

revenue by applying the following five steps:

Step l: Identi8 the contEc(s) with a customer

The Comp6ny applies the rcvenue recognition model to each contracl with a customer once it is
probable lhe entity will collect the consideralion to which it will be entitled. Contracts for this
purpose may be waitten, verbal or implied by customary business practices, but must be

enforceable and have commercial subslance. In evaluating whelher collection is probable, lhe
Company considers only the customer's ability and intention to pay lhe considemtion when due.

Step 2: Identiry the performance obliSalions in the contract

Once the contract has been identified, the Company evaluates lhe terms and customary business

pmctices to identi! which promised goods or services should be accounted for as separate
perlormance obligations. The key deleminant for identirying a sepamte performance obligation
is whether a good or service, or a bundle, is distinct. A good or service is disiinct ifthe customer
can benefit from lhe good or seryice on its own or together with other readily available
resources and lhe good or service is sepamtely identifiable hom other Fomises in the contract.
The Company treats each distinct good or service as a sepamte perfomance obligation.

Step J : Determine lhe transaction price

The Lansaction price is the amount ofconsider.tion to which an entity exp€cts to be entitled and
includes:

-An estimate of any variable conside.ation determined using either a probability-weiShted
expected v6lue or the most likely amount whichever better predicts the amount ofconsideralion
lo which the Company will be entitled

-The effect of the time vslue of money, if there is a financing component that is significant to
the contact

-The fair value of any non-cash considemtion

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the perforrnance obligations in the contract

The Company usually allocates transaction price to each sepamte performance obligation on a
relalive sland-alone selling price basis. When determining stand-alone selling prices, the
Company uses observable information, if it is available. lf stand-alone selling prices are not
directly observable, the Company estimates such prices based on reasonably available
information, e.g., adjusred market assessment approach or an expected cost plus a maagin
approach. Only when the stand-alone selling price of a good or service is highly variable or
uncertain, the Company use residual approach forallocation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Company determines whether it satisfies performance obligation by transferring control ofa
promised good or service over tilne or at a poiDt in time to the customer. A performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one ofthe following criteriq in which
case. it is satisfied overtime:

M. NO.
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-The clstooer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs

-The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that lhe customer confols as the
asset is created or enhanced

The Company's performance does not crcate an asset with an ahemative use to the Company
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised, when all significant risks and rewards are transferred
to the buyer, as p€r the terms of contracts and no significant uncertainty exists rcSarding amount
of the consideration thal will be derived fiom the sale ofgoods.

Revenue fiom ssle ofgoods is rec-ognised when the significant risks and rcwards ofownership have

b€en transferrcd to the buyer, usually on delivery of 8oods, it is probable that the economic benefit
will flow to the Company, the associated costs and possible retum of goods can be estimated
rcliably, therc is neither continuing management involvement to the degree usually associated with
o*nership nor effective control over the goods sold and tle amount of revenue can be measured

reliably. The Company is principal in ell of its rcvenue arrangements, since it is the primary obligor
in all of the revenue arangements, as il has pricinS latitude md is exposed to inventory and crcdit
risks.

Provisions for chargebaclq aebates and discounts are estimated snd provided for in the year of sales

and rccordad f,s reduction ofrcvenue.

Revenue is meesured at the fair value ofthe consideration aeceived or rcceivable. Amount disclosed

ss revenue ar€ inclusive ofexcise duty, excludinS Goods snd Services tax (GST), sales tax or value

added taxes or service t6xes or duties collected on behalf of the govemment and net of amounts

collected on behalf ofthird panies.

When fie financing element is significanl the Company adjusts the fans€ction price for lhe lime

value of money. The objective when adjusting lhe consideration for a significant finarcing
component is to recognise r€venue at the cash s€lling price.

Revenue fiom sale oftechnology / know how (ri8hts, licences and other intanSibles) are recognised

when performance obligation is compleled as per the terms ofthe 88r€ement. Incomes from s€rvices

are recognised when services are rendercd.

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Insuralce and other claims are recognised as

a ,evenue on certainty of receipt on prudent b8sis. Export benefits available under Prevalent schemes

arc accounted to the extent considered rcceivable.

Dividend income is rccognised when the Entity's right to receive lhe payment is established, which

is geneially when shareholders appmve the dividend.

6.9 Employee BeEelits

Short-term Beoelits - The Company recognizes a liability net of arnounts already paid and an

expense for services rcndered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term b€nefits Siven
by the Company 1o its employees include salaries and wages, social s€curity contibutions' short-

term comp€nsated absences, bonuses and othel non-monetary benefits.

P6t-Employment Bcrclit! - The Company does not have a formal retirement benefil plan.

However, the Company is subject to the provision of Republic Act No. 7641 (known as the

Retircment Law). This requires that in the absence of a retirement plan of agreemenl providing for
retircrnent benefils of employees in the private sector, an employee uPon rcachinS the age of 60

years or morc, but not beyond 65 yea$, who has s€rved for at least five (5) lna private

M tro.
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company, may retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay. No actuarial computation was made
considerinS that therc arc no more than ten (10) employees who had served at least five years and
the tumover ofemployees is high.

CompeNrted Absetrc6 - Compensated absences are recognized for the number ofpaid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end oflhe reporting period. Those ale included in
the salaries and wages account and ar€ rccognized when availed ofby the employees.

Relirement ond Other Long-lerm BcDefit
Retirement and other long-term benefits costs arc actuarially determined using the projected unit
cred merhod. This method retlects services rcndered by employees up to the date of valuation and
incorpomtes assumptions conceming employees' projected salaries. The calculation of defined
benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognizrd assel is Iimited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any firture refunds from the plan or reduclions in the futuae
contributions to the plan. To calcul6te the present value ofeconomic benefits, consideration is given
to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net rctirement and other long-term employee benefits liability, which
comp se actualial gains and losses, the retum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the 6sset ceiling (if any, excluding interesl), are recognized immediately in OCI. The Company
delermines the net interesl expense to measure the net retirement benefit liability (asse0 on at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liabilily (asset) during the period as a result ofcontributions
and beneffl p6),rnents. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits ofa plan are ch.nged or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is rccognized irnmediately in profit or
loss. The Company .ecognizes gains and losses on the settlemenl ofa defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

The net retirement and other long-term benefib liability recognized by the Company is the aggregate
ofthe present value ofthe defined benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of
which lhe obligations are to be settled directly. The present value ofthe defined benefit obligation is
delermined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-fre€ interest mtes of
govemment bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms ofthe aelated retirement and
other long-term benefits liability.

Shrre-based compeN.tiotr
Company has no share based compensation plan.

6,10 Borrcwing Costs

6.1I Lef,se

Borrowing costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and other bank charges. Bonowing costs
ditectly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofan asset that necessarily takes a
subna ial period oftime to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized a5 pan ofthe cost of
lhe asset. All other bonowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

The detemination ofwhether an arrangemenl is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance ofthe
armngement al the inception date, whether fulfilment ofthe arangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets or the arangement
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

M. NO.
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Assets acquircd on leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by lessor are classified as operating leases. L€ases rentals are charged to the stalement of
profil and loss on straight line basis.

6.12 fsrnitrgs P€r Share

Basic eaminSs per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted ernin8s p€r equity share is computed by dividing the net profit att butable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted averaSe numb€r ofequity shares that
could have been issued upon conveEion ofalldilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shaies are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares treen actually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares arc deemed converted as of the beginning ofthe period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares 6re determined independently for each
p€riod presented.

6.13 ltrcorDe Taies

lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

lncome tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent

that it rclates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The curent income tax charge is based on texable income for lhe year

calculated on lhe basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Defened income tax is pmvided in firll, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases ofassets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of 6n asset or liability in a

transaction. other than a business combination, lhat al lhe time of the transaction affects neither

accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Defemd income ta-r is determined

usinS tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period and

are expected to apply in lhe period when lhe related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recogDised to the extent that it is

probable that future ta-xable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences

can be utilised.

6.14 Dividends to shsreholderg

Annual dividend distribution lo tbe sharcholders is recoSnised as. liability in the period in which

the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on

approval by Bo6rd of Dircclors. Dividend pay.bl€ is rccognised directly in equity.

6.15 Provisions, CoDtingent Liabilities, Conlingent Assets and Commitments

Gencrel
Provisions (legal and constructive) arc recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obligation
(leSalor constructive) as a resllt of a past event: (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that an

outflow ofrcsources embodying economic b€nefits will be requircd to settle the obliSation; and (c) a

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. lf the efTect of the time value of
money is material, ptovisions are determined by discounling the expected future cash flows at a pre-

tax rate that reflects curent market ass€ssmenl of the time value ofmoney and those risks specific to
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recognized as Finance Cost. when some or all of the expenditurc requircd to settle a povision is

expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only
when, it is virtually certain thal reimbursement will b€ received iflhe entity senles lhe obligation.
The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recogrized for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are reviewed at esch
reporting dare and adjusted lo reflect the cunent b€st estimate.

Contitrgent liebility is dtuclosed in thc csse of:
. A presenl obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow ofresources

willbe required to settle the obligation;
. A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimales is possiblel
. A possible obliSation arising from past evenls, unless the probability of outflow of resources is

remote.

Contingent liabilities are not rccognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent asseis

are neilher recognised nor disclosed in the Financi.l St tements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assels and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Alsel Retirenrerl Obligrtiotr
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lerlse arangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end ofthe lease period to restore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as pan of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a cunent pre-t6x mte that reflects the risks specific
to lhe decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
slatement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropiate. Changes in eslimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

6.16 Fsir value measurement

The Compaly measures financial insfuments, such as, derivatives at f6ir value at esch balance sheet
date in accordance with lnd AS I 13.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement offinancial position:
. Derivative financial instruments are measured at fairvalue received from Bank.
. Mutual Funds are measured al fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).
. Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Repon.

Fair value is the price that would be received lo sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

MNO
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and besl use.

The Company uses valuation techniques thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximisinS the use ofrelevant observable inputs
and minimising the use ofunobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measurcd or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within lhe fair value hierarchy, described as follows, b.sed on the lowest level input tiat
is significant to lhe fair value measuremenl as a whole:
r Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.
. Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input th.t is significanl to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly obsewable.
. Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant io the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recuring basis, the

Company determines whether transfers have occurr€d tretween levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing cateSorisation (b6sed on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measuremenl as a whole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the compaay has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks ofthe assel or liability and lhe level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

6.11 Recentaccountiogprcoouncements

Stlndrrds issned but not yel ellective

The Ministry of Corporate ArIaiB, in April 2019, has notified lnd AS I16, teases. Ind AS I 16 sets

out the principles for recognition, presentation and disclosur€ ofleases. lnd AS I 16 is rhe equivalent

of IFRS (lntemational Financial Repo ing Standsrds) 116. Ind AS 116 shall be applied from
financial years beginning on or aftet lsl April, 2019.

These amendments arc not expected to have any impacl on the Company.

6.lE Critic.l .ccountitrg judgeDetrr, estiErler rDd $sumptioDs

The prcparation of the Company's financial statements requires manaSement to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reporled amounts of rcvenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end ofthe reporting period. Howeve.'

uncenainty about these Assumplions and estimates could rtsult in outcomes that rcquire a material

adjustrnent to the c{rying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.

(s) AraDgemeDt containitrg lersc
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company detemines whether the arrangement is or

contains a lease. At lhe inception or on reassessment of 8n amrgement that contains a lease.

Company sepamtes payments 8nd other considemtion required by th€ arrangement into

those for the lease alld those for the other elements on the basis oftheir relative fair values.

fie Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the

amngements that such contracts are in the naturc of opemting leases

It. NO
107574



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to lhe Fitrancisl Statements rs otr 31 Mrrch 2019

(b) Multiple elemeDt cotrtrscts with veDdors
The Company has enlered into multiple elemenl contracts with vendors for supply ofgoods
and rendering ofservices. The consideration paid iymay be determined independenl of the

value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are

accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies

with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the sigrificant accounting Policies) have

been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the

Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes thal the currcnt
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement.

(c) Property, Phrt rnd equipDeDt
D€termination ofthe estimaled useful life oftangible assets and the assessmenl as to which
components ofthe cosl may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
ofuseful lives/rates prescribed by the CAAPS ofthe respective countiies. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components ofthe cost of the asset may be capitalised.

(d) ltrtrDgible Assets
Intemal technical or user teafi assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets

Management believes lhal assigned useful lives are reasonable.

(e) Recognition and measurement ofdefined betrefit obligrtioDs
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumplions. Key acluarial assumplions include discount mle, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market yields at the end ofthe reporting period on the govemment tronds. The
period to maturity ofthe underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity ofthe post-
employment b€nefi I obligations.

(0 Recognition of deferred tar assets and itrcome tax
Defered tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable thal taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Msnagement judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
defened tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying arnount ofdeferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ fiom actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustmenl to the arnounts reported in the financial
statements.

Unceftainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex lax regulations and the
nmount and timing of futurc taxable income. Given the wide range ofintemational business
relationships and the long-term nalure and complexity of exining conractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and lhe assumptions made, or future changes
10 such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to t&\ income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on rcasonable estimates, for possible
consequences ofaudits by the tax authorities ofthe resp€ctive counaies in which h operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of ta\ regulalions by lhe taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

M, NO-
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that tL\able profit will b€ available against which the losses crn be utitised. Significanr
managemenl judgemenl is required to determine the amount ofdefened lax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level offuture taxable profits, firture lax
planning shategies and recenl business [rrformances and developments.

(9 Recognition rnd m€rsuremetrt ofother provfuions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability ofan oumow of resources, and on post experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources al6 future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in olher provisions.

(h) Contiagcncies
Management judgement is required for cstimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,
in r€sp€cl of contingencieJclairn/litigations againn the Company as it is nor possible to
predict the outcome of pending maners wilh accuracy.

(D Allowance for uncollected rccourts receivable .trd advrnces
Trade receivables do not carry any intere( and arc stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. lndividual trade receivables are
written off when management seems them nol collectible. Impairment is made on lhe
expected crEdit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expecled
life ofthe financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financialass€ts are b6sed on assumption about risk ofdefault
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumplion and selectinS the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condilion as well as

forward looking eslimates al the end ofe3ch reportinS period.

0) Insurence chims
Insurance claims are rccognised when the Company has r€asonable certainty of rccovery

Impairmenl reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value ofan asset or cash generating unit ('CCU')
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recovemble amount is the higher of its fair value less costs

to sell and ils value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in us€, certain assumplions are required to be made in

respect of highly uncerlain matters, including management's expectations of gro*(h in

EBITDA, long term groMh rates; and th€ selection of discount rates to reflect the risks

involved.

(k)
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l Mrrch 2019

25. Capital Management

Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, crediior and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monilors the retum on
capital, as well as the level ofdividends to equity shareholders. The board ofdircctors seeks to maintain
a balance b€tween lhe hiSher rEtums that might be possible with higher levels of bonowing and the
advantages and security afforded by 6 sound cspital position. Company's larget is to achieve a retum on
capital above 307o; in 2018-19 the rctum was 53% and in 2017-18 Oe rctum was 45o%.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net debf to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose.

adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and torrowings and

obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and short term investments. Adjusted

equity comprises all components ofequity.

Company's policy is to keep the .atio below |.00 and its adjuded net debt to equity ralio al Jl March

2019 was as follows. { in Lecs
3l Mrrch 2019 3l Merch 2018

Debr (Debt + Current Liabilities) 2,687.05

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents '714.25 I,023.05

Net Debt t,9 72.t0 1,906.89

Equity R 6.591.01 5,428.2E

Net Debt to EquitY ratio NB 0.30 0.35

26.

27.

Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numemtor and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Per Share:

Rctirenrent plsd - The Company did not yel set up a retirement plan since it not have more than

3l March 2019 3l March 2018Prrticulars
Per Sbare:Besic sDd Diluted Eern

I,7 47 .362,53t.52Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS (l
in Lacs

B Nil NilAdd: Dilulive effect on profit ({ in Lacs)
I,747.36C=A-B 2,538.s2Profit attributable to Equity shareholders for computinS

Diluled EPS (t in tacs)
20,00,000D 20,00,000Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding -

for Basic EPS
NitE NilAdd; Dilutive elfecl of option outstanding- Number of

Shares
20,00,000F=D+E 20,00,000Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted

EPS
100t00Face Value Der Equity Share (Php)

41.i7AID 126.93Per SbrreBasic Earn
87.J7c/F 126.9JDiluled f,arnings Per Shar$ ({)

M NO,
1075f1

ten (10) employees who had served at least five years. Retirement exp€nses. upon actual

Employec Benefits

As required by Ind AS l9 'Employee Benefits', the Company offers its employees: Short-term employee

benefrts - 'Ihise benefits include salaries and wages and olher govemmenl contibutions which are due

within twelve months after the end of the p€riod in which the employee renders the related service. The

toral consideration paid in 2018-19 was t 1,226.28 lacs (Previous Year < 1,147.30 Lacs)



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financirl Statemeats for the year etrded 31 March 2019

availment ofqualified employees which will be determined by the ComPany based on the actual number

ofyears of service in compliance with RA No. 7641. No retiremenl costs were recognized

28. Financial Itrstrumenl - fair values and risk management

Frir vrlue measureDetrts { in Lacs
31 Mrrch 2019 3l March 2018

Fitrancisl Itrstrumenls by calegory FVTPL Amortised
Co3t

FVTPL ArDortfued
Cost

Financial A$ets
Trade Receivables 4,90s.29 4,131.01

Other Non-Cunent Financial Assets t.57 1.21

Cash and cash equivalents 714.25 1.021.05

Total Financial Assels 5,621.t2 5.155.27

Finencisl Liabilities
Borrowings 66.08 t00.59
Other Cunent Financial Liabilities 1,046.06 823.05
Trade Pavables t,640.99 2.106.89
Total Financial Lisbilities 2.753.1J 3,030.53

Fair Value < itr Lacs

Level I - The hierarchy in level I includes financial instruments measurcd using quoted prices. This
includes mutualfunds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued usingthe closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value offinancial instruments lhat arc not traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. Ifall sigrificant inpuls required to fair v.lue as
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level2.

Level 3 - lfone or more ofthe significanl inputs is not based on observable market data, the insfument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity secu.ities, etc. included in level 3.

A. FiDrrci.l rirk m.mgertretrl
Company has exposure to following risks arising fiom financial instmments:
. Credit risk
. Liquidity risk

3l Nlarch 2019 3l March 20lE
Financial aslets and li.bilities measured sl
feirvshe

Level

I II Ill I ll III
Financial essets
NoD recurriDg fsir value measurem€trt
Trade Receivables 4,905.29 4,l3 t.0l
Other Non-Currenl Financial Assets 1.57 l.2l
Cash and cash equivalents 714.25 1,023.05
Total Financisl Assets 5,621.12 5.155.27

Financiol Liabilities
Bonowings 66.08 100.59
Other Cunent Financial Liabilities 1,046.06 823.05
Tmde Pavables 1,640.99 2,r06.89
Total Finrncirl Liabilities 2,753.13 3.030.53

Level

-------T----t



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Noies to the Finaocisl StateDetrts for the yerr etrded 3l March 2019

. Market risk

Rbk DrErgemeDl frame*ork
Company's board of dircctors has overall respnsibility for the eslablishmenl and oversight of the
Company's risk management framcwork. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies, underthe guidance ofAudit Comminee.

Company's risk management policies are established to idefltiry and analyse the risks faced by it, ro set

appropriale risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and th€ Company's
activities. Company, through its training and pocedurcs aims to maintain a disciplined and conslructive
control environment in which all employees understaad their roles and obligations.

Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors complianc€ with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy ofthe risk management framework in
relation to the risks faccd by the Company. The audit comminee is assisted in its oversight role by
intemal 6udit. Intemal audit undertales both regular and ad hoc reviews ofrisk management controls
and procedures, the results ofwhich are rcported to the audit commiftee.

Crdit rtuk
Company's credit risk is minimal. The tmde receivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the carrying
amount ofthese financial instruments. Customels are subject to stringent financial, credit and legal
verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debls is nol significant.

t.

With rcspecl to crcdit risk arising from other financial assets ofthe Company, which comprise cash

in banks and receivables (except for advances to suppliers), the Company's exposure to credil risk
arises liom default ofthe counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. The Company limits its exposwe to crcdit risks by depositing its cash only with
financial institulions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's
receivables is minimal since no default parments were mad€ by the counterparties. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk th8t the Company nay nol be able to meet its prcsent and fufure cash and

collateral obligations without incuning unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all
times maintsin optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash manaSement system.

Presently thc Company has existing long-term loans that fund capital exp€nditures. WorkinS capital

requirements arc adequately address€d by intemally genemted funds. Trade rcceivables are kept

within manageable levels.

Markel risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in markct p ces - such as foreign exchange rates, interest mles

and equity prices - will affect the Comp.ny's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of markel risk management is to manage and control market risk

exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimisingthe refum. Financial instruments alfected
by market risk include loans and bo.rowings, deposits, investnents, and derivative financial
instruments. Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, includinS the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. AlltranMctions are caried out within

guidelines set by the risk management committee

sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion offinancialt0r!r4
struments in foreign currencies are all conslant. The analysis excludes the impact ofmovements



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the tr'inrDcirl StrtemeDts for tbe year ended 31 Msrcb 2019

in market variables on the carrying value ofpostemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity ofthe relevant income slatemenl item is the

effect ofthe assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets

and financial liabilities held as of3l March 2019 and 3l March 2018.

s) Crrr€ncy risk
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primadly from movements ofthe Philippine p€so

a8ainst the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominaled financial assets and liabilities.

The Company's transactional curency exposures arise from its inventories v,,hich is 100%
purchases fiom Holding Company in US dollar. In addition, 13% as at 3l March 2019 and I l7o
as at 3l March 2018 of the Company's debt are denominated in US dollar. The Company
periodically reviews the trend ofthe foreign exchange rates and, as a praclical move, increases
its US dollar denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is depreciating ot
decreases its US dollar denominated lime deposils in times when the Philippine peso is
appreciating.

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of3l March 2019 and 3l March 2018:
I io L.cs

Perticulars 3l March 2019 f,l March 20lE
FinancialAssets
Trade Payables 0.640.99) (2,r 06.89)
Borrowings & Other Irinancial Liabilities (34.16) (23.30)
Net Assers / (Liabilities) ( t,675.15) (2,130. t9)

For the year ended 3 I March 20 I 9 and 3 I March 20 I E, every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange mte between the PHP and resp€ctive curencies has affected the
Com 's incremental before tax as below { io Lscs

29. Note on foreign currency exposures or assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contact. The year-end foreign
that have not been mit a derivative instument or otherwise are as below

b) IDterest rale rick
The Company's exposure lo changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-
term debt obligations. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to fair value interest mte risk.
The following table demonstmtes the sensilivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in
inlerest rates, with all other variable held constant, ofthe Company's profit befoae income ux.
The estimates are based on the outstanding interes b€aring liabilities of the Company with

Ycar Change in currency exchatrge rale Effcct on profil before lax
3l March 2019 +5% t (-5%\ 83.76 t(83.16)
3l Malch 2018 +5% I (-5o/o\ r06.51/ (106.5r)

I iu Lacs
Foreign Currency

Amt itr Lacs
3l Mrrch 2019 3l Mrrch 2018 3l Mrrch 2019 3l March 20lE

Foreign
Currencv

Amount
Payable

1,675.l5 2,130.19 24.28 32.82 USD

Yef,r Chxnge in intcrest rate Effcct on Drofil before tax
I I March 2019 +1o/o / (-l%)
llMarch20l6 +t% I (-t%\ lz-999(c\ 1.7e t (t .7e\

lr. NO.
to7|,t1

interest rate as at I I March 2019 and 3 I March 201 8. { itr Laca

Pirticulrrs



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Noles to lhe FitrlDcirl StsteDetrt for the year ended 31 March 2019

c) Pfice risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, 6s therc is no equity investments

30. Disclosure for operating lerses under Ind AS 17 - "Lerses":

The Company have taken a premise under o;reratirg lease. The lease is for a period ofone year and
renewable every year upon mutual consent of the panies. There arc no contingent rents. The lease
payments of I 31.48 Lacs (Prcvious Ye.r { 18.42 Lacs) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
under "Renl" under Note 24.

The Company leases trgnsportation equipment under a number offinance leas€ agreements for a term of
5 years. Tmnsportation equipment under finance lease arrangements, shown as part of "Property. Plant
and E4uipment" accounl in the statements of financial position. The a8grc8ate fulure minimum

under finance leases are as under: { in Lscs

31. Contingent Liabilities atrd commitDetrts:

There are no contingenl liabilities and commitmenls by the Company.

32. Related psrty disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Rel.tioNhiDsr
Category I -Holditrg ComprDy & Fellow subsidiary
Ajanta Ph.rma Ltd., India (Holding Compary)

tranlactions were ctrried out wilh rclated { in Lecs

Sr. No. Prrticulars Crtegory 3l Merch 2019 3l Merch 2018

l. Trsde Pnveble :

Ajanra Pharrna Ltd., lndia I 1,634.1t 1. r06.89

3l Mrrch 2019 3l Mrrch 2018Particular.
196.6E

-18.61
Not later than one year

66.0E 100.59Later than one year but not laier than five years

Nit NitLess than five years

3l Marcb 2019 3l March 2018Sr. No. Parlicullrs
l. Purcbase ofGoods:

9 373.45 1 039.28IPharma Ltd lndia

nl
BenefitsShort Term f,m

s9.0363.83IISam Gioskos

620.431,644.513. DivideDd Prid to Ajrrt. Pharmt Ltd.,
Indio

v. No.
t075ra

Amount outstand rs or 3l Mrrch 2019 { in Lacs

Citegory II - DirectoB, Key Management Personnel & tbeir Relrtiv6:
Sam Gioskos Director (APPI)
& Relatives ofK€y Management Personnel

Cateporr



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Finstrcial Strtements for lhe yelr erded 3l Mrrch 2019

33. RemuDeration to Auditors: { in Lecs
Parliculars 3l March 2019 3l March 20lE
Audit Fees 3.27 t.5l

34, The Compaly has one segment ofactivity namely "Phamaceuticsls"

ln t€rms ofour report attached

"{

For G. R. Modi & Co,
Chartered Accoufltants
(ICAIFRN:ll

S$aptril Modi
Partner

Mumbai,22 April 2019

For rnd on behilfofBoard ofDirectors of
Ajaata Pharma Philippines Inc.

Is\a4qa-.,so|
Rajes[ M. Agnwrl
Director

M, NO,
10/574
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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of AJANTA PHARMA USA INC'

Repon on the Stlndalone FiDancial Statemeots

ir,! u."o*o of AJANTA pHARMA USA INC. arc certified by rhe Management under the

l"*il;;i G country for the period lst Jan 2018 to 3lst December 2018 The company

i"ii^*" tr," r*ioa lst ADril 2018 to 31st March 2019 ln ordq to consolidate the accounts of

;ilaii;;iliM^ ui'a rNc with that of the companv, we hav€ been appoirted bv the

;;;;;il;i;; 
""mpanv 

to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA PHARMA UsA INC'

i"r,i?-r".ilJ rJeoril 20i8 to 3lst March 2019 under the companies Act in accordance with

generaliy accepted accounting principles in lndia tlnd AS)

Opinion
we have audited the accompanymg standalone Ind AS hnancial statements of AJANTA

p'lie,irve usa mc. 1'rhe Comianv") comprising ofthe Stan!a!9n3 Balance sheet as at 3lst

iviar"f, zofs, the Stan;alone Stat"meot of irofit 
-and Lott (including other comprehensive

ini-"i tt'," stanaulone Cash FIow statement, for the year then ended' and a summary of the

li;;;;";";;""";;;;;; r"ri.". -a other explanatory information {hereinafter referred to as "the

:iililffi i;;x;ff;i"j ,L[.*,i., prip*ed in accordance wirh group accounting policies

;;ji;*"d;;;jil tharma rtd. rrt"ie sianduton" financial statements have been prepared

solely to enabte Ajanta to prepare its consolidated financial statements'

ln our opinion and to fie best of our information aod according to the explanations given to us'

iir" 
"i#rriO 

.,""aAone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair vi-ew in conformity with the accounting principles

""n",uif, 
*..o*a in lniia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and

irolir,ltoss. and irs cash flows for the year ended on that date'

Basis for Opitrion
il;';;;t;;;rt audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

r""1"" i+iirol 
"f 

tfte Companies Act, 2013 our responsibilities under-those Standards are

i"rG.i 0".-ruia in the Auiitot's Responsibiliries for rhe Audit oI the Finahcial Statements

;;;; ;il;;;il we are independent of the Companv in accord ance w'l.h the Code of Ethics

i.*"J uu afr" Institute of Charteri4 Accountants of I;dia together with the ethical requirements

iil;""i"i;;#;;;r. "uai 
oi,r," r--"ial statements under the provisions of the companies

n"i,lOij -J tn" Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance witfr these requirements and the Code of Ethics we believe that the audit evidence

*e t ure ottuinea i, sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion'

M. NO,
r075?4



Key Audit Matters
Key audit maners are those mafteN that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements ofthe current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a sepamte opinion on these maners.

Managemelt's Responsibility for the Stsndalone Ind AS Finatrcial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act,2013 ('1he Acf') with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial perfomance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordaoce with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other inegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
p.eparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement. whether due to lraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease opemtions, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors arc also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are ftee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fiaud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggegate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

Report on Other Legrl and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:
(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement ofProfit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.



(d) [n our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 offie Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Comparies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis ofthe w tten reprcsentations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directom is disqualified as on 3lst March,
2019 ftom being appointed as a director in terms of Section lA (2) ofthe Act.

(0 With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accoidance with
Rule I I ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-tem contmcts including derivative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable

losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to b€ transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

,1ror G.R.Modi& Co
('hortered Accountants
Firm's registration number: I 1261

CA Swrpnil Modi

Membership number: I 07574
Mumbai
22"d Ap 2otg
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Annexure - A to thc Auditors' Reporl

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
ofthe Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
USA NC.('lhe Company") as of 3l March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Fiirancial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting crite a established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chafiered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
erors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounti.g records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of lntemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Cuidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of lntemal Financial Contols and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
asswance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material rcspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the isk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaiuating the design and operating effectiveness ofintemal control based

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on thc auditor's judgment, including the
assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meading oflotertral Fitratrcial Cotrtrols over Finatrcial Reportitrg
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparaiion of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reponing includis those policies
and procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, aciurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting pdnci-ple;, and that
receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accotdance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the companyi
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Itrheretrt Limitatiotrs of Iniemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over finaniial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materiil
misstatements due to error or Aaud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation ofthe intemal financial cont.ols over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policiei or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opiriotr
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls
system over financial reporling and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were
op€rating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the intemal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

I'or G.RModi & Co
Charlered Accountants
Firm's regi number: I 12617

Modi

Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
22'd Apit 2otg

M. r.o.
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 3l March 2019

l. Corporatelnformation

AjaDta Pharrna USA Inc. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in United Statcs
of America and is a wholly owncd subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma L(d., India. The address of its
registered oflice is locatcd at 440, US Highway, 22, East Bridgewater, New Jersey 0880?, USA

Company is primarily involved in the business ofpharmaceulical and rclated activities.

2. Basis of preparation

The fl-Dancial statement of the Compatry have beeD prepared iD all malerial aspecls in accordancc
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in hdian Accounting standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Slandards) Rules, 2015 as amended atrd other rclevanl provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally acrepted in India.

The financial statements have bccn prepared on an accrualbasis and under the histoncal cost basis.

which havc been measurcd at fair value orrevalued amount wherever applicable.

3. Functional and Presentation Currency

Functional currency of the Company is Us Dollars (UsD). The financial statement is preparcd &
preseotcd in lndian Rupees (INR) as it is the functional curency ofthe Holding Company.

1. Rounding ofAmounts

All amounls disclosed irl lhe financial statements and noles have been rounded olf to the nearcst

lacs.

5. Current versus NoD-Current classilication

The assets atrd liabilities in the balance sheet arc presented based on currenrnon'cuflent
classification.

An rsset ls current whett it is:
. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the purpose oftrading, or
. Expected to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period, or
o Cash or cash equivalenl unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least trrelve months afler tbe reporting period.
All other assets are classified as Nonturrent.

A liability is current when it isl
. Expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the pupose oftrading, or
. Due lo be settled within twelve months afler lhe reporting period, or
r There is no unconditional right to d€f€r the settlemenl ofthe liability for at least lwelve months

M. NO.
107574

The Fimncial Staternent for the Compatry werc autborised for issue by the Compary's Board of
Directors on 22 Apdl, 2019.

afler the reporting period.
All other liabilities are treated as NoD{unenl.



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2019

Deferred lax assets and liabililies arc classified as non_cureDt assets and liabilities respectively

Oper.ting Cycle
Brsed on ihe nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisilion of
assets and their realisalion in casb or cash equivalenls, the GrouP has determined its operatiDg cycle

as 12 months for the purpose ofclassificatiol of its asscts and liabilities as cureDt and non-curleDt

6. Significant Accounting Policies

6.1 Property, Phnt and Equipment

Propeny, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less deprecialion. Historical cosl includes

expcnditue that is directly attributable lo the acquisition ofthe ilems. Subsequent cosls are included

in the assets carrying amount or re.cognised as a sePamte asset as appropriate, only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the

cosl ofthe item can be measurcd reliably.

Deprecialion is calculated on thc straight-line method to write offlhe cost ofassels, lo their residual

valucs over their estimated uscfirllife as follows:
Particulrrs Useful Life
Building 20 to 30 vears

Fumilure, Fixlures & Fittings 5 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives arc reviewed and adjusted ifappropriale, at each end of
reporting period. Whcre the carryitrg amount of an asset is grealer than its estimated recovemble

amount, it is writteD down irffnediately to ils recovemble amounl. Gains and losses on disposals of
propefly, plant atrd equipmelt are determined by comparing procceds with carrying amounl and are

included in the stalement ofprofit or loss.

6.2 trinancirllnstruments

A fiDancial instrumeDt is any contract thal gives rise to a financial asset ofone entily ard a financial
liability or equity iDstrumenl of another enlily.

Financial Asscts

Classificalion

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measued al amortised cost, fair value through
other compreheDsive income or fair value thrcugh profit or loss, on the basis ofits business model

for managing the financial asscts atrd the contlactual cash flows characteristics of lhe financial asset.

Initirl Rccognition xnd Mersurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of fiDancial assets nol
recorded at fail value tlrough profit or loss, transaction costs thal are attributable lo the acquisition
ofthe financial assel.

Subsequent Measurement

For thc purpose ofsubsequent measuremenl, financial assets are classified in two broad calcgories:

U. NO
107574

. Financial assets at fair valuc (FWPL / FVTOCI)

. Financial assets al amortised cost



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements ss on 3l March 2019

When asscls are measurcd at fair valuc, gains and losses are either recognised in lhe stalement of
profit and loss (j-c- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or rccognised in othcr comprehensivc
income (i.e. fair value lhrough other comprchcnsive income (FVTOCI)).

Financisl Assets me{sured at Amorliscd Cost (net of any w te dowtr for impairment, if any)

FiDancial assets are measured at amorlised cost when assel is held withiD a business model. whosc
objective is lo hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows aod contractual terms of the asscl
give rise on specilied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inlerest. Such
financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effeclive inlerest rale (EIR)
method less impairment, ifany. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in th€ Statement
of profit and loss.

Fitrancid Assels me.sured ot Folr Vrlue through Other Comprehensiye Itrcorrle ("FVTOCI")

Finatrcial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each rcporting date at fair
value, when assel is held within a business model, whosc objective is to hold assets for both
collecling contractual cash flows and selli[g financial assets. Fair value movemenls are rccognized
in the other comprehensive income.

Finarcial A3sets me.sured rt F.ir V.lue through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL"):

FiDaDcial assets under this category are measued ioitially as well as at each aeporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

lnvestment in Equit) Instruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All othcr equity
instrumcnts are classified as FVTOCI- Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycliDg of the arnounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Investmcnt in Drbl Inslrumenls

A debt instrument is measurcd at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt instrumcnt, which does
not meet the criteria for catcgorizalion as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classificd as al FVTPL
Debt inskuments included witlin the FVTPL category are rneasured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognilion of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights lo receive cash flows fiom lhc asset bave
expired or Company has transfefed ils rights to receive cash flows from the assel.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with hd - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measuremenl aDd recognition ol impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt insmrments
and trade receivables.

Fi'rancinl l,irbililies

Classific:rtir)ll

M. NO
10t574

0.

Company classifies all finaocial liabilities ly measured at amortised cost or FVTPL



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements rs on 3l March 2019

Initiil Recognition and Mersurerrena

AII fina$ial liabilities are recognised iritially at fair value and, in the case of loans, bonowings and

payables, net of directly atlribltable traNaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, Ioans and borrowings including bank

overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Mersurement

Finarcial liabilities al fait value lhrough profit or loss include financial liabilities held for rading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss

Inlerest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequcntly measured al amortised cost using the

Effectivc Interest Rale (EIR) method. Gains and losses are rccognised in profit or loss when the

liabilities are derecognised as well as tkough EIR amorlisation process. Amortised cosl is calculated

by laking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral

part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement ofprolit and loss.

Derecognition of Financirl Lirbilities

Finished products including tradcd goods are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighted average

basis) and net rcalisable value. The cost of loventories have been compuled to include all cost of
purchases, cost of conversion, apptopriate share of 6xed production overheads bascd on normal

capacity and othe, rclated cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their preseni location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling ptice in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated costs ofcompletion and selling expeDses.

Slow and non-moving, obsolesces, defective inveolory are fully provided for aDd valued al net

realisable value. Goods in trar$il ate valu€d at acfual cost incurred up to the dale ofbalance sheet.

Cash and Cash Equivalcnts comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixcd

A financial liability is derecognised whcn the obligation unds the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by aaother fiom the same lendcr
on substantially different lerms, or the lems ofan existing liability are subslantially modified, such

an exchange or modilicalion is treatcd as the derccognition of the original liability and the

rccogDition of a new liability. The difference in the rcspective carying amounts is rccognised in the

Statement of Profil and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instrumcnt

The Company uscs d€rivative financial insruments, such as forward ctmency conlracts lo mitigate
ils foreign curency risks. Such derivalive finaDcial instrumenls are initially recognised at fair value

on lhe dale on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measuted at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive atld as financial

liabililies when the fair valu€ is negative.

6.3 Inventories

M, NO
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Flnatrcial Statements as oD 3l March 2019

readily convenible to kno\r,n amourlts of cash and which arc subject lo an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

6.5 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are rcponed using lhe indirect method, whereby net profit beforc tax is 6djusted for the
effects oftraDsactions ofa non-cash nalure, any deferrals or accruals ofpasl or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with invesling or financing cash
flows. The cash flow ftom opcrating, invcsting and finarlcing activities of thc Company arc
segregated. Bank overdrafls thal are repayabl€ on demand aDd form an inlegral parl of the Group's
cash management are included as a componeDt of cash and cash equivalent for the pu+ose of
statemenl ofcash flow.

6.6 Foreign Currency Tronsactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are nomally recorded at the exchange rale
prevailing on the dale of the tmnsactioD.

Monetary items denominaled in foreign cunencies at the year-end arc re-measured al the exchangc
rale prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monelary foreign currency itcms are carried at cost-

Any income or expense on account ofexchange difference eilher on settlemcnt or on rcstatemcnl ts

recogniscd in the Stat€ment ofProfit and Loss.

6.1 RevenueRecognition

The Compa[y recognises revenue lo depict the transfer ofpromised goods or services to customeB.
In accordance with lnd-As I 15 Revenue from Contracts witb Customels, the Company recognises
revenue by applying the following five steps:

. Step l: Idendry lhe contract(s) wifl a customer

The CompaDy applies the revenue recogtrition model to each contract with a customer oncc it is
probable the entity will collect the considemtion to which il will be entitled. Contracts for this
pupos€ may be written, verbal or implied by customary business practices, but musl bc
enforceable aad have commercial substance. In evaluating whether colleclioD is probable, thc
Company considcrs only lhe customer's ability and intention to pay the consideration when due.

Step 2: Idenliry the performance obligalions in lhe contract

Once the contract has b€en identified, the Company evalua(es the terms and customaly busincss
pmctices to identify which promised goods or services should bc accounted for as separalc
performance obligations. The key determinant lor idcntirying a separate performance obligation
is *hethet a good or service, or a bundle, is distinct. A good or seflice is distiDct ifthe cuslomcr
can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other readily available
resources and the good or service is sepamtely identifiable from other promises in the contracl.
The Company treats each distinct good or service as a sepamte pe ormance obligalion-

Step 3: Determine the tmnsaction pdce

u. No
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-An eslimale of any variable considemtion determined using either a probability-weighted

expected value or the mosl likely amount, whichevd better predicts the a$ount of coosideration

to which the Company will be entitled

-The effect ofthe time value of money, if there is a finalcing compoDent that is siSnilicant to

the conlnct

-The fair value of any non-cash considcaatio!

Step 4: Allocate the hansaction price lo the pe ormance obligations in the contract

The Company usually allocates transactioD price lo each separale pcaformance obligation on a
relativc stand-alone selling price basis. when determining stand-alone selling prices, thc
Company uses observablc infomation, if it is available. If stand-alone selling prices arc not
dircctly obsewable, the Company estimates such prices based on rcasonably availablc
information, e.g., adjustcd markel assessmenl approach or Eu expected cost plus a margin
approach. Only when lhe stand-alone selling price of a good or service is highly variable ot
uncertain, the Company use rcsidual approach for allocatiol.

Step 5: Rccogdse revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a pcrfoamarce obligation

Thc Company dctemines whether it satisfies performaoce obligation by transferring control ofa
promised good or sewice over timc or at a point in time to the customer. A performance

obligation is satisficd at a point in time unlcss it meets one of the following criteria, in which
case, it is satisfied over time:

-The customer simultaneously receives and consumes tbe benefils provided by the Company's
pefomance as tie Company performs

-The Company's performance creates or enhances alr asset that the cuslomer coDtrols as the
asset is crealed or enhanced

The Company's performance does not crcate an asset with an altemativ€ use to the Company
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance compl€ted to date
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised, when all significant risks and rewards are transfefied
to the buyer, as pcr the tenns of contracts and no significant uncerlainty exists tegarding amount
of the consideration that will b€ derived ftom the sale of goods.

Rcvenue from sale ofgoods is rccognised when l}le significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferrcd to the buyer, usually on delivery of goods, it is probable that the economic benefil
will flow to lhe Company, the associaled cosls and possible retum of goods caD be eslimated
reliably, therc is neither continuing managemedl involvemenl to the degrce usu.lly associaled with
ownership nor ellective control over the goods sold and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. The Company is p ncipal in all ofits revenue anangements, since it is the primary obligor
in all ofthe reveDue arangemeDts, as it has pdcing latitude and is exposed to inventory and credit
risk.

Provisions for chargeback, rebates and discounts are estimated and provided for in the year ofsales
and rccorded as reduction ofrevenue,

ReveDue is measrred al the fair value ofthe consideration received or receivable. Amount disclosed
as revenue are inclusive ofexcise duty, excluding Goods and Services tax (GST), sales tax or value
added taxes or service laxes or duties collecled on behalf of the govcmmenl, and Det of amounts

f u.^o
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When the frnancing elemenl is significant, the Company adjusts the tramaction price for thc time
value of money. The objective when adjusting the consideration for a significant fidancing
componeot is to recog se rev€nue al the cash sellingprice.

Revenue from sale oftechnology / know how (rights, licences and other intangibles) are recognised
when perfomance obligation is completed as per the terms ofthe agreement. Incomes from serviccs
are recogdsed when services are rendered.

Inlerest income is recognised on time proportion basis. lnsurance and other claims are recognised as

a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis. Export benefils available under prevalenl schemes
are accomted lo the extent coDsidered rcceivsble.

Dividend income is recognised when the E ity's right to receivc the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

6.8 Employee Benelits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendcred by employees during the accouiting period. Short{erm benefits given
by lhe CompaDy to its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, Medicare
contribulions, and oiher non-monetary benefi ts.

Post-Employmelt Benelits - The Company provides a 401(k) relirement proglam for full-time
employees who arc 21 years of age or older. Eligible cmployees are entitled to paflicipate in the
company offercd plan with an option to contribute up the maximum 3oz ofannualbase salary. For
employees with an annual base salary abov€ the aDnual compensation limits, as determincd by the

Federal Intemal Revenue Service (Federal), the annual APUI contribution will be capped at 3% of
the Federal allowed aturual compensation limits. All contributions arc 1007o vested immediately lo
the employee.

Shrre-based compensotion
Company has no share bascd compcnsation plan.

6.9 Borrowing Cosls

Borrowing costs comprise of interest and other costs that an cntity incurs in connection wilh the

bofowing of funds. Bonowing costs directly attributable to th€ acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its ittended use or sale

arc capitalized as part ofthe cost ofthe asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur.

6.10 Lease

The deiemiDation ofwhether an atrangemeDt is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance ofthe
arrangement at the inceplion date, whether fulfilmeDt ofthe arra.Dgement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets or the afiangement conveys a right to use the asset, even ifthal right is not
explicitly specified in an aratrgement.

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership arc

retained by lessor are classified as opcrating lcases. Leases rentals arc charged lo th€ statement of
profit and loss on straight line basis.

M. NO,
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6.ll Earnings Per Shrre

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attribulable to the equity
holderc of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

period. Diluled eamiDgs pcr equity share is compuled by dividing the nel profil attributable lo the

cquity holdcrs of the company by lhe weighted averaSe numbcr of cquity shares considered for
deriving basic camings per equity share and also thc weiglted average number ofequity shares $at
could havc been issued upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential

equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds rcceivablc had the equity shares been actually issued at

fair valuc. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as ofthe beginning ofthe period,

unless issued at a laler dale. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each

period presented.

6,12 lncome Tarts

lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement ofprofit and loss except to the extent

that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
compreheosive income. The curent income tax charge is based on taxable income for the ycar
calculated on the basis of tax laws enacled or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability melhod, on temporary differeoces arising
between thc tax bases of assels aod liabilities and their carryiDg amounts iD the financial statements.

Hov,,ever, if the deferred income tax arises ftom initial recognition of aD asset or liability in a

transaclion, other than a business combioatior\ that at the time of thc tralsaction affects neilher
accounting nor taxablc profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined
usiDg tax ratcs that have bccn eDacled or substanlively enacted by the end of reporting period and

are expecled lo apply in the period when the related defe[ed income tax asset is realised or lhc
deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred lax assets are recognised to the extent lhat it is
probable that future laxable profit will be availablc against which deductible temporary differenccs
can be ulilised.

6.ll Dividends to Shareholdcrs

Annlal dividend distdbution to tlc shareholders is recognised as a liability in the pcriod in which
thc dividends arc approvcd by the sharcholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board ofDirectors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

6.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

Genersl
Provisions (lcgal and constructive) ale recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a resuh ofa past event; (b) it is Fobable (i.e., more likely thaD not) thal an

outflow of resources embodying economic bmefits will be rcquired to settle the obligalion; and (c) a

reliable estimate can be made of lhe amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
moDey is material, provisions are delermincd by discounting the expecled firtue cash flows 6t a pre-

tax mte th6t reflects curent harket assessmenl of lhe time value ofmoney aDd those risks specific to
the liability. when discounting is used, the ircrease in the provision due to the passage of timc is
recognized as Finarce Cost. Wlen some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is

cxpected to bc reimbursed by another pany, the reimbursement shall be recogized whe& and only
wher\ it is virtually certain lhat rcimbursement will be reccived if the entity seltles the obligalion.

M, NO,
'10f574

assel. The amourt recognized lor theThe reimbursemenl shall be treated as



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statemenb ss on 3l Mrrch 2019

reimbursement shall nol exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are reviewed a( cach
reporting date and adjusted lo reflecl thc current besl estimate.

Conthgent llsbility is disclosed iD the crse of:
. A present obligatioD arisitrg from past events, when il is not probable thal an outflow ofresources

will bc required to settle the obligation;
. A present obligation arising from past events, when no r€liable cstimates is possiblc;
o A possiblc obligation arising from past eveols, unless the probability of outflow of resources is

rcmotc.

Conlingcnt liabilities arc not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Conlingent assels

are neither recogdsed nor disclosed in the Financial Stalements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingeDt assets and commitmeDts are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirem€nt Obligation
Assct rctirement obligations (ARO) are provided for thosc operating lease arrangcments where thc

Company has a binding obligalion al the end of the lease period lo reslore the leased premises in a

condition similar to inccption of lease. ARO arc provided at the present value of expeclcd cosls lo
settlc the obligation using discounted cash flows and are rccognised as parl of the cost of thal

particular asset. The cash flows arc discounted at a current prc-tax rate that reflects thc risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of thc discount is recognised in the incomc

stalcment as a financc cost. The eslimated future cosls of decommissioning are reviewcd annually

and adjusted as appropiate. Changes in €stimated future cosls or in the discounl rate applied arc

added to or deducted from the cost ofthe asset.

6.15 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instrumenls, such as, derivalives at fair value at each balance shecl

date in accordance with Ind As l13.

Financials Stalements have beeD prepared on the hislorical cost basis exceqt for the following

material items in $e statemeol of finamial posilion:

. Derivativc financial instruments are measured at fair value received fiom Bank.

. Mutual Funds are measued at lair values as per Nel Asset Value (NAV)

r Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report'

Fair value is the price that would be rcceived to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary

transaction between mdket participants at the measurement date'

Thefairvalueofanassetoraliabilityismeasuedusingtheassumptionsthatmarketparticipants
*oula use *hen 6clrg the asset or [;biIty, .ssuming thal markel pa cipants act irl their economic

best interesl,

A fair value mcasuremeDt ofa noD-financial asset lakes inlo accounl a market participant's abilily to

generate economic betrefi ts by usiDg the asset in its highest and best use oI by selling it to anothcr
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Thc Company uses valuation techniques that arc appropriate in thc circumstances and for which
sufficicnt data are available to measue fair value, maximising lhc use ofrelevanl obscwable inputs
and minimising the use ofunobservable inpuls.

All assets alld liabilities for which fat value is measured or disclosed in the fiDancial stalehents are
categorised wiihiD the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thal
is significanl lo lhe fair value measuremenl as a whole:
. Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which lhe lowest level input that is significanl lo lhe fair

value measuement is directly or indtectly observable.
. Level 3 - Valuation lechdques for which the lowest level input that is significanl lo lhe fair

value measuremenl is unobservable-

For assels and liabilities lhal are recognised in lhe financial statements od a recurring basis, thc
Company deteImines whether transfers have occured between levels in lhe hierarchy by re-
assessing cateSorisation ftased on the lowest levcl input thal is significant to the fair value
measuremenl as a whole) at the end ofeach reponing period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the compa[y has delermined classes of assets atrd
liabilities on the basis oflhe nature, characteristics and risk oflhe asset or liability and lhe level of
the fair value hicrarchy as explained above.

6.16 Recenttccountingpronouncements

Sarndrrds issued but not yel elfective

The Ministry of Corporate AffaiIs, in April 2019, has notified Ind AS I16, Leases. Ind AS 116 sers
out the principles for recognilion, preseDtation aod disclosure of leases. Ind AS I I 6 is the equivalent
of IFRS (lntemational Financial Reporling Standards) 116. lnd AS 116 shalt be applied fiom
financial years beginning on or afier lst April, 2019.

These amendments arc not expected to havc any impacl on the Company.

6.17 C tic.l .ccouDtiDg judgemeDts, estidates ltld rssumptiotrs

The pr€paration of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions lhat affect the reported amounls of tevenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contitrgent liabililies, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in oulcomes that rcquire a material
adjustmenl to the carying amount of the assets or liabilities in hrture periods.

(r) Arrtrgement contrining lersc
Al lhe inception of an anangement, lhe Company determines whether the anangement is or
contains a lease. At the inceplion or on reassessmeDt ofan arrangement tbat contiins a lease,
Company separates payments and other consideration required by tbe arangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elemells oD the ba;is of th;ir relative f;ir values.

The Company has delermiDed, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
afiangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases.

(b) Multiple elemellt contrrct6 with vendorc
The Company has entered iDlo mulliple element contlacts with vendors for supply of goods
and renderitrg of services. Tlre considemlion paid ivmay be derermiDed independent of the
value of supplies received ald services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
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with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significa accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Pla,ll atrd Equipmeot and,/or as Idangiblc assets, sincc the
Company has economic ownership ill ihese assets. Company believes ihat lhc currcnt
lreatmcnt reprcsenls the substance of the arangcment.

(c) Property, Pl.nl .nd €quipment
Determinalion of lhe estimated useful life of tangible assels and the assessmenl as to which
componeDts ofthe cosl may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the )ife
ofusefirl liverrates prescribed by the GAAPS ofthe respective countries. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, wheticr an asset may be capitalised and
which componenls of the cost of the asset may bc capitalised.

(d) lntrnglble Assets
Intemal technical or user team ass€ss the remaining useful lives of Inlangible assets.

ManagemeDt bclieves that assigned useful livcs are reasonable.

(e) Recognition and me.surement of defi ned benelit obligotions
The obligation arisinS from thc defin€d benefit plan is detcrmined on the basis ofactuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount mte, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discou rate is dclcrmined with
reference to markct yields al the end ofthe reporling period on the govemment bonds. The
period to matudty ofthe uoderlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity ofthc posl-
employment benefi I obligations.

(f) Recognition of deferred trr asscts and itrcolnc ilr
Defered tax assel is recoglised for all the deductible temporary differences lo lhe extent
thal it is Fobable that taxable profit will bc available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be

available while recognising deferred tax assets.

ManagemeDt judgflent is required lor the calculation of provision for income taxes and

defened tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date lhc
carrying amoutrt of deferred tax assets. The factors used in cstimates may differ fiom aclual

outcome which could lead lo significant adjustmeot to the amoults reported in the financial
stalements.

Uncertainties exist with respecl to the interpretation of complex tax rcgulations and thc

amounl and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range ofintemational busincss

relalionships and the long-term nature aDd complexity of exisling conlractual agreemcnls,

differences arising belween the actual results and the assumplions made, or future changes

to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments lo tax income and expeDse ahcady

rccorded. The Company eslablishes pmvisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible

consequences ofaudits by the tax authoriti€s ofthe rcspective countries in which it operalcs.

The amouDt of such provisions is bas€d on various factors, such as experience ofprevious
tax audils and differing hterpretations of tax regulations by lhe taxable entity and lhc
rcsponsible tax authority. Such diflerences of interpretation may anse on a wide varicty of
issues depending on lhe conditions prevailinS in the respective country.

Dcfeffed tax assets are recognised for all unused lax losses to the extent $at it is probable

that taxable profit will be available againsl which the losses can be uliliscd. Significanl
management judgement is required to delermine the amount ofdefefed tax assets that can

be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of fulure taxable profits, fulure tax
planning suategies and recent business performances and developmeDts.

M, NO,
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(g) Recognition xnd mersuremcnt ofother Provislons
The recognition and measurement of othff provisions are bascd on lhe assessmcnt of the

probability of an outflow of resoutces, and on past experience and circumstances know'n at

thc balance sheet date. Thc actual outflow ofresources al a future date may, therefore, vary

fiom lhe figure iDcluded in olhet provisions.

(h) Conlingenci€s
Managemenl judgement is requircd for estimating the possible oulflow oftcsources, ifany,
in respcct of contingencies/clainr/litigatioos against the Company as it is not possible to
predicl the outcome ofpending matters with accumcy.

Allordonce for uDcollected rccounts rcceivlble irld rdv.nces
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are staled at their Dormal value as rcduced by
appropriate allowances for eslimated irrecoverable amoullts. Individual tmde receivables are

writlen off when [vmagement seems them nol collectible. Impairment is made otr the

expected credit losses, which arc the present value of the cash shonfall over the €xpected

life ofthe finaDcial assels.

The impairment provisions for financial assets arc based on assumption about risk of default
and cxpccled loss rates. Judgement iD making these assumplion and selecting the inputs lo
the impairment calculation are based od pasl hislory, existing market condition as well as

forward lookiDg estimales at the end ofeach reponing period.

0) Insurance cliims
lnsurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery

(k) lmpiirment reviews
An impairmeDt exists when the carying value of an asset or cash geneBting unit ('CGU')
exceeds its recovemble amounl. Recoverable amounl is the higher ofils fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value itr use calculation is based on a discouDted cash flow
model. h calculathg the value in use, certain .ssumplioDs are requircd lo be made in
resp€ct of highly uDcertain matler, including managerDent's expeclations of growth in
EBITDA, lol1g term growth rates; aDd the seleclion of discount rates to rellecl the risks
involved.

(D
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25. Capital Management

Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital basc so as to maintain investor, creditor and markel
confidence and to sustain futule development of the business. Management monilors the rclum on

capital, as well as the level ofdividends to equity shareholdeE. The board ofdireclors seeks to maintain
a balance belween the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advan(ages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company's target is lo achieve a rcturn on

capital above 30%; in 2018-19 thc retum was 69% and in 2017-18 lhe relum was 5702.

Company monitors capilal using a ratio of'adjustcd net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purposc,

adjusted Det debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interesl-bearing loans and borrowings and

obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalenls and shorl term investments. Adjusted
equity comprises all components oi equity.

Company's policy is to kcep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjuslcd net dcbt to equily ratio al I I March
2019 was as follows. { in Lacs

Parliculars 3l M.rch 2019 3l Nrarch 2018

Dcbr (Debt + Currenl Liabilitjcs) 24,780.27 18,279.00

Lcss: Cash and Cash equivalents 1,539.98 983.30

Nct Debt t7,295.70

Equity B 2,149.85 1,522.85

Net Dcbt to Equity ratio A/I' 9.E9 I 1.36

26. Ear[ings Per share (EPS):

The numeralor and denominator used to calculale Basic and Diluted Eamin s Per Share

21. Employee Benelits

As required by Ind AS l9 'Employee Benefits', the Company offers its employees: Short-term employee

benerils - These benefits include salaries alld wages and other goveroment coDlributions which are duc

imfiediately on paymenl and the same is dcposited with Govemmeot authonties- The total considemtion

paid in 2018-19 was 12,172.58 Lscs (Previous Year { 1,634.20 Lacs).

Relirement plan - The Company provides a 401(k) retirement progam for full-timc employecs who arc

2l years ofage or older. Eligible cmployees are enlitled lo participate in lhe company offercd plan with
an option to contributc up the maximum 37o ofannual base salary. For employees with ad annual basc

3l Nr:rrch 20183l March 2019Parliculars
Brsic and Diluled Earnings Per Share:

1,245.06 5t2.45Profil a$ributable to Equity sharcholders- for Basic EPS ({
in Lacs)

B Nil NiIAdd: Dilutive effect on profit ({ in Lacs)
C=A-B |,245.06 512 ,15Profit attributable to Equity shareholderc for computing

Drluled EPS ({ in Lacs)
D t0,000 t0,000weighted Average Number of Equity shares oulstanding -

for B.sic EPS
Ii n-il NiIAdd: Dilutive effect of option outstarding- Numbcr of

Equity Shares

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted
EPS

F=D+E t0,000 10,000

100 100Facc Value per Equity Share (USD)
A/D 12.450.6r 5,124.5,1Basic Earnings Per Shere (t)
(vF r2.450.61 5,124.54Diluted Earnings Pcr Shares ({)
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salary above lhc annual compensation limits, as dctermined by the Fedcral Intemal Revenuc Scrvice
(Federal), the annual APUI coDtribution will be capped at 3% of the Federal allovr'ed annual
compcnsation limils. All conlributions arc 100% vesled immedialely to lhc employee.

28. Financial Instrument - fair values alld risk management

Fair vslue measurements
3l N{arch 2019 3l March 2018

FinaI|cial Instrumcnts by catcgory FVTPL Amortised
Cost

FVTPL Amortised
Cost

Financial Asscts
Trade Receivables t9,390.41 tr,47 4.89
Cash and cash equivalents 1,539.98 983.30
Total Iinancial Assets 20,930.39 12.,158.19

Finsncial Liobilities
Borrowings 3,334.33
Other Current Liabilities 2,063.08 860.96
Trade Payables 22,',717.19 17,418.04
Total Financial Liabilities 28-l14.60 18.279.00

Fair \'rlue Hierarc { in Lacs

Level I - The hierarchy in levcl I includcs fimncial instuments measured using quoled prices. This
includcs mutual firnds that havc quoled price. The mutual firnds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in all active market (like forward
conliacts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
aDd rely as litlle as possible on cntity-specific estimates. Ifall sigrificaDt inputs required to fair value as
instrument are obseryable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more ofthc sigdficant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securilies, etc. included in level 3.

{ in Lacs

(,i

3l March 2019 3l March 2018
trill.ncill.ssets and lirbilities measured rt
faL vrlue

Lercl Level

I II Ill I II l
Financial assets
Non recurring feir value measuremenl
Trade Rcccivables 19,390.41 I1,474.89
Cash and cash equivalents 1,539.98 983.30
Total FinancielAssets 20.930.39 12.458.19

Financirl Liabilities
Bo[owings
Other Curent Liabilities 2,063.08 860.96
Trade Payables 22,711 .19 I7,418.04
Totrl Financial l,iabilities 28-l1,t.60 18,279.00

M, NO,
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2019

Risk mrnrg€ment frrmework
Company's board of dircctors has overall responsibility for the establishmenl and oversight of the
Company's risk managemenl fiamework. ManagemeDl is responsible for developing and moniloritrg the
Compatry's risk management policies, under the guidatrce ofAudil Commitlee.

Company's risk management policies are established to identify alrd analyse the risks faced by it, lo sel
apprcpriatg risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence lo limils. Risk managemenl
policies and systems are revi€wed regularly to reflect changes in market co.ditions and lhe Company's
activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
co!&ol environment in which all employees understand lheir roles ard obligations.

Company's Audit committee overcees how managemeot monitors compliance with the Company's risk
managem€nt policies and procedues, and reviews the adequacy ofthe risk managemenl framework in
relalion to lhe risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in ils oversight role by
intemal audit. Intemal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews ofrisk management controls
and procedues, the results ofwhich are reported to the audit committee.

i. Credit rk
Compally's credil risk is minimal. The lrade receivables arise rnainly fiom lransactions with ils
approved cuslomers. The maximum exposue to crcdit on these transactions is equal lo the carrying
amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject to stringent financial, credit and legal

verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to
eDsure timely collectioDs. Accordingly, the Company's exposue to bad debts is not significant.

With resp€ct to credil risk arising from other financial assels ofthe Company, which comprise cash

in banks and receivables (except lor advances to suppliers), the Company's exposur€ to credit nsk

arises from default ofthe counterpaiy, witb a maximum exposure equal to thc carrying arnount of
thesc instrumcnls. The Company limils its exposure to crcdil risk by depositing its cash only wilh
Iinancial inslitutions duly evalualed and approved by the Board of Direclors. The CompaDy's

receivables is minimal siDce no default paymetrts were made by the couDterpanies. An impairmeDt

analysis is performed at each r€porling date otr atr individual basis for major clients.

ii, Liquidtty risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may oot be able to meet its prcsent and future cash and

collateral obligations without incurrilg unacceptable losses. The CompaDy's objective is to, at all

times rnainlain optimurD levels of liquidily to meet its cash and collateml rcquirements. The

Compaoy closely modtors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash managcment system.

Presently the CompaDy has existing long-term loans that fund capital expendihfes. WorkiDg capital

requirements are adequately addressed by htemally genelated funds. Tlade receivables are kcpt

within rnanageable levels.

It. M.rket risk
Market risk is the risk that changcs itl market prices - such as foreign exchange mtes, inlerest rates

and equity prices - will affecl the Company's ircome or lhe value of its holdings of financial

instruments. The objective of markel risk nratraSemenl is to manage and control market risk

exposues within acceptable parameten, while optimising the retum. Financial instruments affected

by market risk include loans and bonowings, deposits, investnents, and derivalivc financial

iDstruments. Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange mtes ard intcrest lates. All transactions are caried out within

the guidelines set by th€ risk management committee.

The sensitivity analysis bave teen prcparcd on tbe basis ofderivatives and the proporlion offinancial

instruments in foreign curencies are all constatrt. The analysis excludes the impact of movements

in market variables on the carrying value ofpostemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on

M, NO,
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Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2019

the non-financial assets and liabilities. Thc sensitivity oflhc relcvant incomc statement item is the

cffect of the assumcd changes in thc rcspcctive markel risks. This is based on the financial assets

and financial liabililies held as of3l March 2019 and 3l March 2018

r) Currency risk- 
Tlre Company have no foreign exchange risk as their entire dealings arc h their local functional

currcncy i.e., US Dollars.

b) Inter6t rrte risk
Company's exposurc to changes in inlerest rates relates primarily to the Company's shorl-lem
debt;bligations. Fixed .ate financial insttuments ale subjecl to fair value iderest mte risk. The

following lable demonslrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in interesl

rales, with all other variable held constant, of the ComPany's plofit before income tax. Th€

estimates are based on the outstanding intetest bearing liabililies ofthe Company with floating
interest rate as al3l March2019and3l Malch 2018.

t in L.cs
Year ('hangc in inlercsl ralr Effect on profit before tax

3l March 2019 +t% / (-to/o) 13.34 t (33.34)

3l March 201E +l% I (-lo/o\ Nil / (Nil)

Price sk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investmeDts

Disclosure for operating lerses under Ind AS l7 - "Leases":

The Company have laken a premise undcr operaling leasc. The lease is for a period of one year and

renewable evcry year upon mulual consenl of the parties. Thcre arc no coDtiDgeDt rents. The lease

paymenls of < 101.73 Lacs (Pr. Yr. { 5E.52 Lacs) are recognised in Statement ofProfit and Loss under
"Rent" under Note 24.

Provision of a[ticipated Sales Returns for Expired Goods - Ind AS 37
a in Lf,cs

3l Nrarch 2019 3l Mrrch 2018

Balance at the beginning ofthe year 1,t75.95 130.92

Add: Provisions made duing the year 646.12 t.230.60

Less: Amount w llen back/utilizcd during lhc ycar t,158.87 185.57

Balance et fhe cnd of the year 663.80 1,175.95

31. Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

Therc are no contingenl liabilities and commitmcnls by thc Company.

32. Related party disclosure as r€quired by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relrtionships:
Cetegory I - Holding Comprny & Felloll Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Lld., India (Holding Company)
Ajanla Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd. (Fellow Subsidiary)

Crt€gory II - Dir€ctors, Key Manrgement Perso[nel & their Reletives:
Dr. Ramesh Jlawar Directo. (APUI)
& Relatives ofKey Management Penonnel

c)

29

30.

107514



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 3l March 2019

F transactions were carried out with related

Amount as on 3l March 2019

In terms of our report attached

{ in Lacs

{ in Lacs

For and on behslfofBoord of Dircators of
Ajantr Phrrma USA Inc.

Fnr G. R- Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

0cAl

apnil Modi
Partner

Mumbai,22 April 2019

---{4.1't'^'r *t

Yogcsh M. Agrswal
Director

t,

Sr. No. Particulars Category 3l March 2019 3l Mrrch 2018

I Purchase ofGoods:
25,026.88Ajaota Pharma Ltd., lndia I 14,843.1'l

Kev Manasemcnt ComDensation:
Short Term Employec Benefits

II 283.10Dr. Ramesh Jhawar

l. Re-imbursement from Ajanta Pharma
Ltd..India

I 810.34

Nit I,719. t I{. Advancc paid to Ajants Phrrm&
(MBuritius) Ltd,

I

I Nil 82.67Interest paid to Ajart! Pharma
(Mauritius) l,td.

I 6.32 Nit6. Commission plid to Airnte Phsrms
Lrd.

3l March 2019 3l March 2018Particulars CategorlSr. No.
I Tnde Peveble :

17,4t 8.04Aianta Pharma Lld., India I 22,',717.t9

2 Othcr Reccivoble :

I 26.11Ajanla Pharma Ltd., lndia

M. NO_
10/5t4

26t.05

33. The Company has one segmeDt ofactivily namely "Pharrnaceuticals".

12.18
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G0.
Chartered Accountants

Report oD the Standalone Financial Strtements
Th" u."ount. of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. are being audited under the local laws of
the country by the statutory auditor for the period lst Jan 2018 to 31st December 2018 The

company iollows the period lst April 2018 to 3lst March 2019. In order to consolidate the

accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. with that of the company, we have been

appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
pfi,cRMe i"llCEnt,{ aTD. for the period lst April 2018 to 3lst March 2019 under the

companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS)'

Indepcndcnt Auditor's lleport
To the Mcmbcrs of Ajanta l'harmn Nigerir Ltd.

Dasil for

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone tnd AS financial statements of AJANTA

PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. ("the Company") comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at

3lst March 2019, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive

income). the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the

significant accounting policies and other explanatory infomation (hereinafter referred to as "the

stindalone Ind AS fiiancial statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies

followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Staldalone financial slatements have been prepared

solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its financial statements

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in lndia. of the state of affairc of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and

profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further desc bed in lhe Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of lhe Financiol Statenents

section ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordarce w\th lhe Code of Ethics

issued by the Inititute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements

that are ielevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance \rith these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

M, NO
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Key Audit Matteru
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were ofmost significance
in our audit ofthe financial statements ofthe cunent period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, aod in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
'lhe Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view ofthe financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Aci. This
responsibility also includes maintenarce of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
ard using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reponing
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free fiom material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
matedal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Rcquircments

As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as requircd by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears Iiom our examination ofthose books

M, NO.
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proflt and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in ageement with the books ofaccount.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Compades (Accourts)
Rules.20l4.

(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on 3lst March, 2019

taken on record by the Board ofDirectors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on 3tst March,
2019 from being appointed as a director io terms of Section l@ (2) ofthe Act.

(0 With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe
Company and the operating efGctiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexue A".

(g) With respect to the other matteN to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 1l ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditon) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-tem contracts includilg derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable

losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transfened, to the Investor

Education and Prctection Fund by the Company.

/or G.R.Modi& Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: l126l7W

CA Swrptril Modi

Membership number: 107574

Mumbai
22"d Aptil 2ol9

M. NO
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Annexure - A to the Auditors'Rcport

Report on the Internal Finatrcial Coltrols under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143

ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial contols over fina[cial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
NIGERIA LTD.("the Company") as of 3l March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the

standalone financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

lVlanagement's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note

on Audit of Intemal Financial Contols over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design.

implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and eflicient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditors' Rcspotrsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. we conducted out audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")

and the Standards on Auditing, issued by [CAI and deemed to be prescribed under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial

contols, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assumnce about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and if such controls opemted effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

intemal financial conlrols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding

of intemal financial contols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal conhol based

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment ofthe risks ofmaterial misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether

due to fiaud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

M. iO.
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Meaning oflntcrnal Fiuancial Cortrols over Financial Reporting
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that tmnsactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Irherent Limitations oflntertral Financial Controls Over financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject

to the risk that the intemal financial conrol over financial reponing may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material resp€cts, an adequate intemal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at 3l March 2019, based on the intemal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing
issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia.

/or G.R.Modi& Co
Charlered Accounlahls
Fimr's reglstratr t12617W

CA Swapnil Modi

Membership number
Mumbai
22"d Apit2otg
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Filancial Statements as on 3l March 2019

1 Corporatelnformation

Ajants Pharma Nigeri. Lld. is a lirniled liability company incorpomted and domiciled in Nigeria and
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanla Phanna Ltd., lndia. The address of its registered office is
located at Block 6, House 6b, Howson Wright Eslate, Oregun Road, Ojota, Lagos, Nigeria.

The Company is primarily involved in the business ofpharmaceuticll and rcl.ted activities

The Fin.ncial Statement for the Compsny werc authorised for issue by the Company's Board of
Directors on 22 April,2019.

2. Basis of preparation

The Financial Slatement of the Comp6ny have b€en ptepared in all material aspects in accordance

with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in lndian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') read with Rul€ 4 of the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accountinS
principles generally accepted in lndia.

The financial slatements have treen prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,

which have been measurEd at fair value or revalued amount wherever aPplicable.

3. Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional curency ofthe Company is Nige an Niara (NN). The financial slatement is prepared &
presented in lndian Rupees (lNR) as it is the functional currcncy ofthe Holding Company

Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest

lacs.

5, Currentversusnon-currentclassilication:

The assets and liabilities in lhe balance sheet are pr€sented based on curEny'non_current

classification.

An orlel r! currcnt wher it i!:
. Expected to be realised or intended l,o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle' or

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading or

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after lhe rcporting period, ot

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchdlged or used to s€ttle a liability for at

Ieast twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets arc classified as Non_Cun€nt.

A lirbility i! current wh€n it isi
. Expected to be senled in normal operating cycle, or
r Held primarily for the puipose oftradin& or
. Due to be scttled within twelve months after the rcporting period, or

r There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

4
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afler the rcporting period.
All othe, liabilities are treated as Non{unent
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curent assets and liabilities respeclively

Operriing Cycle
B6sed on the nature ofproducts / activities ofthe Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets 6nd their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle

as I 2 months for the purpose of class ification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-cunent

6. Significant Accounting Policies

6.1 Property, Plant end Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cosl less deprcci6tion. Hisl,orical cost includes

expenditure thal is directly attributable to the scquisition ofthe items. Subsequent costs arc included

in the assets carryinS amount or recognised as a seParate asset 6s appropriate, only when it is

probable that firture economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost ofthe item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline method lo ll te oflthe cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life. The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusred if appropriale, al each end of reporling period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its rccovemble
amount. Cains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are delermined by
comparing proceeds with caftying amount and &e included in the statement of profit or loss.

6.2 Financixlltrstrument3

A financial instrumenl is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument ofanorher entity.

Finsncisl Assets

Classificalion

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amorlised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis ofits business model
for managing the financial assets and the confactual cash flows characteristics of lhe financial asset.

lnitial Recoglitiol end Me$uremeot

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets nor
recorded at fair value through profil or loss, transaction costs thal are aftributable to the acquisition
ofth€ financial asser

Subsequert Meesurement

For the purpose ofsubs€quent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
. Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)
. Financial assets al amortised cost
When assets are measured al fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in oiher comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

107511
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Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when 6sset is held within a business model. whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contlactual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses orising from impairment are recognis€d in the Slatemenr
ofpmfit 8Dd loss.

Financisl Assels mersured at Frir Vrlue through Other CompreheNive Inaome ('FVTOCI")

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting dale at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income.

Fln.nci.l Alc.tr B..softd .t F.ir v.lo.lhrough Profit or Lir ('tr'vTPI,")

FinaDcisl assets unde. this category are me.surcd initially as well as .t each reponing date at fair
value wilh lll ch.nges recognis€d in profit or loss.

lnve3imeDl itr Equity IDltrumetrt!

Equity insfuments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCL FaiT value changes on the insrument, excludinS dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling ofthe aDounts from other

comprehensive income to paofit or loss.

Investment in Debt Instruments

A debt insrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCL Any debt inslrument, which does

not meet the crileria for cateSorization as 8t amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified &s at FVTP[,.

Dcbt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognis€d in the Statement ofprofit.nd loss.

Dertcognltlor of FinaDcirl As.!ct!

A finsncial asset is primarily derecognised when lhe righls to receive cash flows ftom lhe asset have

expired or Company has tr8nsferred its rights lo receive cash flows from the asset.

Imp.i]mcnt of FiD.trci.l A$etg

In accordance wiih lnd - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) rnodel for

measuaement ard recognition of impairment loss on the financial ass€ts thst aae debt insbuDents

and trade r€ceivables.

M. NO
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payables, net of directly attr'ibutable transaction costs

FiDmcl.l U.bilitiei

CLi!ilicrtior

Company classifies oll financial liabilities as subsequenlly me8sured at amortised cost or FVTPL

Initiol R.cogDitioD rrd Mersuremetrl

All fmanci.l li.bilities are rccognis€d initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, bonowings and
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Financial liabilities include tmde and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank

overdrafts and derivative fi nancial instruments.

Subsequetrt Mea!urcrlreol

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for hading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognilion as al fait value through profit or loss.

Inlereslb€aring loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

Effective lnterest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the

liabilities are derecognised as well as throuSh EIR amonisation p.ocess. Afiortised cost is calculated

by laking into account any discolnl or prcmium on acquisition and fees or cosls thal are an inteSml
parl ofthe EIR. The EIR amonisation is included as finance costs in lhe statement ofprofit and loss.

D€recognilion oI Finencirl Lirbililies

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by anolher from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms ofan existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is lreated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

D€rivrtiv€ Finrncirl lnstrum€nt

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracls lo miligate
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised al fair value
on the dale on which a derivative confacl is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is neSative.

6.3 lrventories

Nel realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less lhe
estimaled costs ofcompletion and selling expenses.

Slow and non-moving, obsolesces, defective inventory are fully provided for and valued at net
realisable value. Goods and materials in tmnsit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of
balance sheet.

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maurity period of three months or less thar are
readily convenible to known amounts oI cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdmfts that are repayable on demand and fo.m an integral pafl ofthe
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose
of statement ofcash flow.

6.4 Cssh And Cash Equivrlents

Finished p.oducts including traded goods are valued at lower oI cosl (on moving weiShted average
basis) and net realisable value. The cost of lnventories have been computed to include all cost of
purchases, cost of conversion, appmp ate share of fixed production overheads based on normal
capacity and other related cosl incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

M. no.
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6.5 Crsh Flow Stltemetrt

Cash flows are reponed using the indircct method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects oftransactions ofa non-cash nature, any defermls or accruals ofpast or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operaling, investing and financing activities of the Company arc
segregated.

6.6 Forcign Currcocy Transoctioos

Revenue Transaclions denominated in fo.eign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date ofthe transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measurcd at the exchanSe
rate prevailing on the balance sheel date. Non-monetary foreig, currency items are carried at cost.

6.1 RevenueRecognilion

The Company recognises revenue lo depict the fansfer ofpromised goods or seNices to customers.

In accordance with Ind-AS I15 Revenue from ContBcts with Customers, the Company recognises

rcvenue by lpplying rhe following five steps:

. Step l: Ide iry the conhac(s) with a customer

The Company applies the rcvenue recognition modelto each contract with a customer once il is

probable the entity will collect the consideralion to which it will be entitled. Contracts for this
purpose may be written, verbal or implied by customary business pmctices, but must be

enforceable and have commercial substance. In evaluating whether collection is probable, lhe

Company considers only the customer's ability and intenlion to pay the consideration when due.

. Step 2: ldentiry rhe performance obligations in the contract

Onc€ the contract has b€€n identified, the Company evaluatcs lhe terms and customary business

pmctices to identiry which proDised goods or s€rvices should b€ accounted for es separate

performance obligations. The key deteminsnl for idenlirying a separate performance obligation

is whether a good or service, or a bundle, is distinct. A Sood or service is distinct if the customer

can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other readily available

resourc€s and the good or service is sepamtely identifiable from other promises in the contract.

The Company treats each distinct good or service as a separate performance obligation.

. Step 3: Determine the iansaction price

The transaction price is the arnount ofconsidemtion to which an entity expects to b€ entitled and

includes:

-An estimate of any variable consideration determined using either a probability-weighted

exp€cted value or the mosl likely arnoun! whichever bener prcdics the amount ofconsideration

to which the CompaDy will b€ entitled

-The effect of the time value of money, if there is a financing component thal is significant to

the conlract

M. NO
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-The fair value ofany non_cash consideration

Any income or expense on account of exchang€ diflerence either on setllement or on restatement is

recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss.
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. Step 4: Allocate the fansaction price to the performance obligations in the conllact

The Company usually allocates transaction price to each separate performance obliSation on a

relalive stand-alone selling price basis. When determining stand-alone selling prices, the

Company uses observable information, if it is available lf stand_alone selling prices are nol
directly observable, the Company estimales such prices based on reasonably available

information, e.8., adjusted market assessment approach or an expected cost plus a margin
approach. Only when the stand-alone selling price of a good or service is highly variable or
uncedain, the Company use residual approach for allocation

. step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity salisfies a performance obligation

The Company determines whether it satisfies performance obligation by transferrilg control of a

promised good or service over time or at a point in time to the customer. A performance

obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following criteria, in \ ,hich

case, it is satisfied overtime:

-The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
perfomance as the Company performs

-The Company's performance creates or enhances 8D ass€t that the customer contols as the
asset is created or enha[ced

The Company's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the Company
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised, when all significant risks and rewards are fansfered
to the buyer, as per the terms ofconracts and no significant uncertainty exists regarding amounl
ofthe consideration that will be derived fiom the s6le of goods.

Revenue fiom sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards ofownership have
been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery ofgoods, it is probable that the economic benefit
will flow to the Company, the associated costs and possible retum of goods can be estimated
reliably, there is neither continuing managemenl involvement to the degree usually associaled with
ownership nor efTective control over the goods sold and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. The Company is principal in all of its revenue anangements, since i1 is the primary obligor
in all ofthe revenue adangements, as it has pricing latitude and is exposed to inventory and credit
risks.

Provisions for chargeback, rebates and discounts arc estimated and provided for in the year of sales
and recorded as reduction of revenue.

Revenue is measuaed at the fair value of the cansideration received or receivsble. Amou disclosed
as rcvenue are inclusive of excise duty, excluding Goods and Sewices tsx (GST), sales t x or value
added taxes or service taxes or duties collected on behalf of the govemmen! aad net of amouDts
collected on behalf of third parties,

When the linanciDg element is significan! the Compaly adjusts the r8nsaction price for the time
value of money. The objective when adjustinS lhe consideration for a sig ficant financinS
component is to rccognise revenue at the cash selli,rg price.

Revenue from sale of technologr / know how (rights, licences ard other int&gibles) arE recognised
when pcrforma.nce obligation is completed as per the terms ofthe agreement. lncomes fron se ices
are recognised when sovic€s aa€ r€ndercd.

Interest income is aEcognis€d on time proportion basis. lnsurance and ofier clairDs are recoglised as

s ry:g5g199gj-ny-o-t*9ip-9!pn0e,r !$e m
are accounted to the extent considered rcceivable gt
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Dividend income is recognis€d when the Entity's riSht to rcceive the payment is esbblished, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

6.8 Employec Benefils

Shorl-term B.nerits - The Company recognizes a liability nel of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Shon-term benefils given
by the Company to its employees include salaries and wages and other non-monetary benefits.

Po3l-Employmetrt Benerit! - No provision has be€n made in respect of employee retirement
benefits as employees are not eligible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any
pension scheme or any contracted agleement binding ils€lfto the employees.

Share-besed compeDsrtion
Company has no share based compensation plan

6.9 Borrowing Costs

Bonowing costs comprise of other bank charges. Borrowing costs directly aftributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of an ass€t that takes subslantial period of time to get ready

for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the co$ of the asset. All other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they occur.

6,10 Lease

6.ll

The determination ofwhether an araDgement is, or contains, a leas€ is based on lhe subslance ofthe
arangement 8t the inception date, whether fulfilmenl of the ariangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets or the amngement conveys a right to use lhe asset, even if that right is not

explicilly specified in an arrangement.

Assets ac4uired on leases where a siSnificant ponion of the risks and rewards of ownership are

retained by lessor arc classified as operating leases. Le6ses rentals are charged to the statemenl of
profit and loss on sfiaight line basis.

EarDirgr Per Sbrrt

B6sic eamings per equity sharc is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to lhe equity

holders of the company by the weighted average numhr of equity shares outstanding durinS lhe

period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit att ibulable to the

equity holders of the company by the weighted avemge number of equity shares considercd for

deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted averaSe number of equity shares that

could have b€en issued upon conversion ofalldilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential

equity sharcs ar€ adjusted for the proce€ds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at

fair value. Dilulive potential equity shar€s are deemed converted .s of lhe b€ginning ofthe period,

unless issued 6t a later date. Dilutive potential equig shaEs are detetmined independently for each

period presented.

IDcoDe Tarag

lncome tax exp€nse comprises curtnt and deferred income tax

Income tax expens€ is recognized in nel profit in the statcment ofprolit and loss excepl to the extent

that it relareJ b items recognizcd directly in equity, in which case it is r€coSnized in other
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calculated on the b6sis of lax laws enacted or subst4nlively enacled by the erd of lhe r€portinS

period

Deferred income tax is Provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising

between the tax bases of assets and 1iabilities and thei. carying amounts in the financial statements

However, if the defened income tax arises fiom initial recognition of an asset or liabiliry in a

transaction,ot}erthanabusinesscombination'thatatthetimeoflhetransactionaflectsneither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for' Defened income tax is detemined

using tax-rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period and

are ixpected to apply in the period when the related deferred income tax ass€t is realised or the

defe#d income i*iiuUitity l, setlled Defered tax assets are recognised to the exlent that it is

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which deductible tempotary diffe'ences

can be utilised.

6.13

6.14

Dividend! lo Sh.reholdeN

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is rccognised as a liability in the p€riod in which

the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any inlerim dividend paid is recognised on

approval by Board ofDirectors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

Provilio , CoDtirgetrt Lirbilitie!, Corlingent Alset! rDd ComtrritDert!

Generrl
Provisions (legal and construclive) are recognized whenr (a) the Company has I present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a tesult of past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that an

outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the ellect of the lime value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounling the exp€cted futute cash flows at a pre-

tax mte lhal rcflects cunent matket assessment of the time value of money and those risks specific to

the liability. when discounting is used, the increase in the provision due lo lhe passage of time is

recognized as expense finance cost. when some or all of the expenditure required to seftle a

provision is €xpected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized

when, and only when, it is virtually certain thal reimbursemenl will be received if the entity settles

the obligalion. The reimbursement shall be treated as a sepamte asset. The amount recognized for
the reimbuBement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions ate teviewed at each

reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

ContiDgeDt lirbility is dilclo!.d itr tbe care of:
. A present obligation arising fiom past events, when it is not probable that an outflow ofresources

willbe required to settle the obligation;
. A pIesenl obligation aising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;

. A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is

remole.

Contingenl liabilities are not recogDised but disclosed in lhe Financial Statements. Contingent .ssets

are neither r€cognised nor disclosed in the Financial Stalemenls.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingenl assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance

M. NO.
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A!!et Retirement Obligation
Asset retirEmenl obligations (ARO) aie provided for those op€rating lease arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligalion at the end of the lease period to rcstore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inc€ption of lease. ARO arc provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as pan of the cosl of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a curent prc-tax rale that reflects the sks sp€cific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recogDised in the income
statement as a finance cost- The estimated futurc costs of decommissioning are .eviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated firture costs or in the discount rate applied are

added to or deducted from the cost ofthe asset.

6.15 frir velue mersurement

The Company measurcs financial instruments, such 6s, derivatives at faf value at each balance sheet
date iD accordance with Ind AS I13.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material ilems in the $alement offinancial posilion:
. Derivative financial instuments are measured at fair value received ftom Bank.
. Mutual Funds are measured at fat values as per Nel Assel Value (NAV).
. Employee stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is lhe pric€ lhat would be received to s€ll an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction belween market panicipants at the measurcmenl date.

The ,air value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions th.t market panicipants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 6ct in their economic

best intercst.

A fair value measurcment ofa non-financial asset takes inlo account a market patticiparl's ability to
genemte economic benefits by using the 6sset in its highest and best use or by selling il to another

market panicipant that would use the.sset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques thal ate appropriate in the circumslances and for which

sufficient data sJe available to measurc fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs

and Dinimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which faL value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowesl level input that

is significant to the fair vallre measurement as a whole:
. L€vel I - Quoted (unadjusted) market p ces in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
. t€vel 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is siSnificant to lhe fair

valuc measurcment is directly or indirectly observable.

. Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is siSnificant to the fair
value measutement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that art rccognised in the financial statements on a recur ng basis, the

Company determines whether transfers have occurred b€tween levels in the hierarchy by re_

ossesiing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is siSnificant to the fair value

me&surement as a whole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the campany has determined classes of ass€ts and

liabilities on the basis ofthe nalure, chamcteristics 6nd risks ofthe asset or liability and the level of
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6.16 RecetrtsccountirgproDoutrcernents

Sl.trdrrds i$ued but rot yet ellective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in Apdl 2019, has notified lnd AS I16, t eases lnd As I 16 sets

out the principles for r€cognition, pres€ntation and disclosure of leases. Ind AS 116 is the equivalent

of IFRS (Intemational Financial Reporting Standards) 116. lnd AS 116 shall be applied from

financial years beginning on or after lst April,2019.

These amendmenls are not expected to have any impact on the Cornpany

6.17 Critical accouDting judgemctrE' estimrles.rd rssumption3

The prepararion of the Company's financial staternents requires management to make judgements,

eslimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and

liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reponing period However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a malerial
adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe assets or liabilities in future p€riods.

(a) ArrrDgement cotrtaiDiog lerse
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arr6ngement is or
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment ofan arrangement that contains a lease,

Company separates payments aod olher consideration required by the arangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and condilions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases.

(b) Multiple eleEert conlrscts with ye[dors
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply ofgoods
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be detemined independent ofthe
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are

accounted for based on their relative iair values to the overall considemtion. The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as delmed in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounled under Prop€rty, Plant and Equipment and,/or as Intangible assets, since the
Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the currenl
rreatment represents the substance of the arangement.

(c) Property, PlsDt rnd equipment
Determination ofthe estimated usefirl life oftangible assels and the assessment as to which
components ofthe cost may be capitalized. Useful life oftangible assers is based on the life
ofuseful livetrates prescribed by the GAAPs ofthe respective counhies. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost ofthe asset may be capitalised.

(d) Itrt!trgible Assets
Intemal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets.
Management b€lieves lhat assigned usefirl lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement ofdefined betrefit obligations
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discounl rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market yields at the end ofthe reporting period on the govemment bonds. The
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Notes to the Fitr.ncid Statemertr !3 oo 3l Mrrch 2019

period lo maturity ofthe underlying bonds correspond to the pmbable maturity ofthe pos!
employmenl benefi t obligations.

(f) Recognition ofdeferred tax sssets rDd income hr
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible tempomry differences !o the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will b€ available against which the deductible
temporary difference can b€ utilised. The management assumes that taxable profils will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

ManaSemenl judgment is required for the calculation of provision for incorne t&\es and
defered tax asscts and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of defened tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from aclual
outcome which could lead to sigDificant adjustment to lhe amounts reponed in the financial
statements.

Uncertainties exist with rcspect lo the inlerpretation of complex lax regulalions and lhe
amount and timing of futurE taxable income. Given the wide range ofintemational business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existinS contractual agreements,

differences 6rising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes

to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustmenls to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimales. for possible

consequences ofaudits by lhe tax aulhorities offie respective countries in which it operates.

The amount of such provisions is based on various facto6, such as expedence of previous

tax audits and differing interpretations of ta'( regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prcvailing in the resp€clive country.

Defened tax assets arc rcmgnised for all unused tar( losses to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profit will b€ available against which the loss€s can be utilised. Significant
managemenl judgement is required to determine the amount of defened tax sssets that can

be recognised, bas€d upon the likely timinS and the level of futurc taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

(g) Recognitiotr atrd messureDent ofother provisions
The recoSnition and mcasuremenl of other provisions are based on the assessment of the

probability of an outflow of rcsources, and on pasl exp€rience and circumstances known al

the balance she€t date. The actual outflow of resources at a frlture date may, thercfore, vary

from the figure included in other provisions.

(h) Contingeacies
Management judgemenl is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, ifany,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the oulcome of pending haners with accuracy.

(D Allowance for uncollected lccounts receivable and advances
Tmde receivables do not carry any interest and arc stated at their normal value as reduced by

appropriale allowances for estimaled inecovemble 6hounts. Individual trade receivables are

written off when manaSement seems them not collectible. lmpairment is made on the

expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shonfall over the expected

life ofthe financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financialassets are based on assumption about risk ofdefauh

M. NO
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Notes to the FiDoncial SteteDents as on 31 March 2019

the impaiment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as

forward looking estimates at the end of each reponing period.

0) Itr!urrnce clrims
Insurance claims arc recognised when the Company has teasonable certainty of aecovery

(k) ImprirEent reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value ofan asset or cash generatiDg unit ('CGU')
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs

to sell and its v6lue in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating lhe value in use, cenain assumplions are required lo be made in

respect of highly uncertain matte6, including management's expeclations of gowth in
EBITDA, lonS term groPth r.tes; &nd the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved.
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the FinaDcial Statements for the yeor ended 31 March 2019

16. Capital Management

Company's policy is to mainlain a strong cspital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
corfidence and to suslain future development of the business. Management monitors the rctum on
capital, as well as the level ofdividends to equity shareholders. The board ofdirectors seeks to maintain
a balance betwe€n the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company's target is to achieve a retum on
capital above 30%; in 2018-19 lhe retum was -38% and in 2017-18 the rctum was l37olo

Company monitors capital usinS a ratio of'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For rhis purpose,

adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and short term investnents. Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity.

Company's policy is to keip the ralio below 1.00 and its adjuned net debt to equity ratio at J I M.rch
2019 was as follo*s. I ir L.ca
Psrticulsrs 3l Msrch 2019 3l March 2018

Debr (Debt + Cunent Liabilities) 333.32 t,444.80
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 88.11

Ner Debt 245.02 951.4',7

Eauity B I t,1.91 162.29

Net Debt to f,quity rstio A/B 2.13 5.90

t7, Earnings Per shere (EPS):

The numerator rnd denominato. used to calculate Basic and Diluted Share

18. Employee Benefits

As rcquired by Ind AS 19'Employe€ Benefits', the Company ofTers its employees: Short-tenn employee

benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other allowances which are paid immediately.

The total consideration paid in 2018-19 was { 2.95 Lacs (Previous Ye.r a 7.85 Lscs).

Retir€mcDt phn - No provision has treen made in respect of employee retirement benefits as employees

are not eligible for such benefits. Besides the company
contracted agrcement bhdinS itselfto the employees.

does not have anv scheme or any

3l March 2019 ll March 2018Particulars
B{sic and Diluted f,arninqs Per Share:

r55.62(31.65)Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS ({
in Lacs)

NilB NiIAdd: Dilutive effect on profit ({ in Lacs)
C=A-B (31.6s) 155.62Profit attsibutable to Equity shareholders for computing

Diluted EPs (< in Lacs)
t) 6,00,00,000 6,00,00.000Weighted Average Number of Equity shares oulstanding -

for Basic EPS
NilE NilAdd: Dilutive effect of option outslarding- Numbet of

Equi8 Sharcs
6,00,00,000 6,00,00,000F=D+EWeighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted

EPS
IFace Value per Equity Share (NN)

0.26A,/D (0.0s)B.sic f,rrDitrgs Per Shtre (O
0.26clF (0.0s)Diluted Esrnin$ Per Shar$ ({)

M, NO,
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to th€ Financial Ststements for the year ended 3l March 2019

19. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk ma[agement

Fair vslue measuremenls { in Lacs

3l Mlrch 2019 31 March 2018

Finetrcial Iostrurrent3 by cstegory I'VTPL Amortised
Cosl

F\/TPL Amortised
Cost

Finatrcial A$ets
Trade Receivables 350.00 1,1t4.96

Cash and cash equivalents 68.3 t 4t7.33
Total Financisl Assets ,138.31 t.602.29

Financial Liabililies
Olher Cunent Liabilities t42.77 831.95

Trade Payables )90.55 6 r2.84

Total Finaocial Liabilities 333.32 1.441.79

Iair Value { in Leca

Level I - The hierarchy in level I includes financial instruments measur€d using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutud funds arE valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 The fair value offinancial instrumenls that arc not traded in 6n aclive market (like forwad
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use ofob,servable rnarket data
and rely as little as possible on entity-sp€cific estimates. lfall significant inputs required to fair value as

instrument are observable, the inshument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - Ifone or more ofthe significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the inskumenl
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, etc. included in level 3.

A. Fitrrtrcitl dlk D.D.gemeDt
Company has exposurc to follo*ing risks orising fiom financial instruments:
. Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
. Markct risk

Risk mansgement frrmework
Company's board ol directors has overall responsibility for the establishment 8nd oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible fordeveloping 8nd monitoringthe
Company's risk management policics, under the guidance ofAudit Commiftee.

31 Merch 2019 3l March 2018
financiel assets rnd liebilities mee3ured st
feirvalue

Level

I II III I Il lll
Finatrcial assels

Noo tecurrinq frir value measurement
Tmde Receivables 350.00 t,l t4.96
Cash and cash equivalents 6E.31 481.33
Total Fitrancial Assets {l8.tl 1,602.29

Finatrcial Liebililies
Other Cunent Liabilities t42.77 831.9s
Trade Payables 190.55 6 t 2.E4
Total Fitranciel Liabilities 333.32 1,414.79

M, NO
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Notcs to the FinrDcial Strtcmetrts for the year ended 3l M.rch 2019

Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set
appropriate risk limits and contols and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk managemenl
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. Company, thrcu8h its training and procedures aims to mainlain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees undentand their roles and obligalions.

Company's Audit commitee oversees how management monitoE compliance wilh the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and rcviews the adequacy oflhe risk management framework in
rElation to lhe risks faced by the Cornpany. The audit committee is assisted in its oversighl role by
intemal audit. Intemal audit undertakes both rcgular and ad hoc rEviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results ofwhich 6re reported to the audit committee.

i, Crcdit rbk
Company's crcdit risk is minimal. The trade rec.ivables sdse mainly from tr6nsactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure to crcdit on these tansactions is equal to the carrying
amounl ofthes€ financial instruments. Customeff arc subject to stringenl financial, cr€dit and legal
verification proc€ss. ln addition, tmde receivable balances are monitored on an ongoinS basis to
ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposurc lo bad debts is not siSnificant.

With respect to credit risk arisinS from other financial assets ofthe Company, which comprise cash

in banks and receivables (except for advances to suppliers), the Company's exposure to credil risk
arises fiom defauh ofthe counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carryinS amount of
these inshuments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's
receivables is minimal since no default payments were made by the counterparties. An impairmenl
analysis is performed at each reportinS date on an individual basis for major clients.

ii. Llquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may nol be able to me€t its prcsent 6nd fulure cash and

collateral obligations without incurriDg unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meel its cash and collateral requirements The
Cornpany closely monilors its liquidity position and deploys a robus cash management system

Presently the Company has existing long-term loans that fund capital expenditures. Working capital

requircments are adequately addressed by intemally genemted funds. Trade receivables are kepl
within manageable levels.

iii. Mrrkel rilk
Market risk is lhe risk lhat changes in m.rket prices - such as forcign exchange tates, inlerest rates

and equity pric€s - will afrect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial

instruments. The objective of market aisk management is to manage and control markel risk

exposures within acceplable panrneters, while optimisinS the retum. Financial instruments afrected

by market risk include loans and borrorrings, deposits, iDvestments, and derivative financial

ins$uments. Company's activilies expose it to a variety of financisl risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchanSe mtes and inter€st rates. All transaclions are carried out within

the guidelines set by the risk management committee.

The sensitivity analysis have been prcpared on the basis ofderivatives ajld the propodon offinancial

instrum€nts in foreign currencies are all constant. The snalysis excludes the impact of movements

in market vadables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on

the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity ofthe relevant income statemenl item is the

effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets

1ol5t4
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r) CurreDcy filk
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements ofthe Nigerian Niara

aSainst the US dollar with respect to Us dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities. The
Company's transaclional cunency exposures arise from its inventories which is 100/o putchases

from Holding Company in US dollar. The Compary regularly reviews the trend ofthe foreiSrr

exchange mtes.

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 3l March 2019 and 3l March 2018:
{ i! L..s

Particulars 3l March 2019 3l Msrch 2018

Trade Payables (r90.55) (612.81)

Net Assets / (Liabilities) (190.55) (612.84)

For the year ended 3l March 2019 and 3l March 2018, every percentage point depreciation /
apprecialion in the exchange rate between the Nigerian Naira and respective currencies has

affected the 's incremenlal below { itr Lacs

Year Chanqe itr curretrcy exchange rate EITect on profit lrefore tax
I I March 2019 +2s% I (-2s%) 47 .64 t (47 .64)
I I March 2018 +25% / (-25o/o) ts3.21l(ts3.21\

20. Note on foreign currency exposures otr assets atrd liabilities:

During the year, the Company has not entercd into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
that have not been miti a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

b) lnterclt rrle ailk
The Company have no borowings and hence there is no inter€st rate risk.

c) Price risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as ther€ is no equity investrnents

21. Disclosure for operatirg leases utrder Itrd AS l7 - "Leases":

The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease is for a period of l2 to 24 months
and are renewable upon mulual consenl ofthe parties. There are no contingent renls. The lease payments
of{ 3.00 Lacs (Previous Yea. { 6.37 Lacs) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under "Rent"
under Note 15.

22. Contingeot Liabilities aod commitments:

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company

23. Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relatiorships!
Category I - Holdirg ComprDy & Fellow Suhidirry
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)

{ in Lecs Forrigtr Currercy
Ami itr LacaParticulrrs

Jl March 2019 3l March 20lt 3l Mrr.h 2019 3l March 20lE

Foreign
Curr€ncy

Amounl
Payable

t90.55 612.8,1 2.76 9.40 USD

uNo
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treDsrclions tder€ csrried out with relrted

Amount outstand rs on 3l Mlrch 2019

In terms ofour repo atlsclred

{ in Lacs

{ in Lacs

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accounlanls

For rDd or behrlfofBorrd ofDirectors of
Ajrtrtr Pbrrmr Nigerir Ltd.

Vtr'\^ r

Yog6h M. Agrewel
Director

OCA] FRN

Swa Modi
Partner

Mumbai, 22 April20l9

Sr. No. Particulrrs Catcgorv 3l Merch 2019 3l Merch 20lE
I Purchase of Goods:

Ajanta Phama Ltd., India I 202.09 926.',l 4

Equity Share Capital:
Aianta Pharma Ltd., lndia I NIL t00.65

Sr. No. Psrticulars Categorv 3l March 2019 3l M{rch 2018
I Tradc Payable r

Ajanta Phama Ltd., India I 226.59 6t2.84

M. NO,
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24. The Company has one segment ofactivity namely "Pharmaceuticals".
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